NASSAU COUNTY INDUSTRIAL
DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

APPLICATION OF:

Amsterdam House Continuing Care Retirement Community, Inc.
APPLICANT NAME i

Please respond to all questions in this Application for Financial Assistance (the
“Application”) by, as appropriate:

. filling in hlanks;

. checking the applicable term(s);

. attaching additional text (with notation in Application such as “see
Schedule I, Item # 17, etc.); or

. writing “N.A.”, signifying “not applicable™,

All attachments responsive to questions found in this Application should be clearly
labeled and attached as Schedule [ to the Application. If an estimate is given, enter “EST” after
the figure. One signed original and one photocopy of the Application (including all attachments)
must be submitted.

The following amounts are payable to the Nassau County Industrial Development
Agency (the “Agency™) at the time this Application is submitted to the Ageney: (i) a $1,500 non-
refundable application fee (the “Application Fee™); (ii) a $3.500 expense deposit for the
Agency’s Transaction/Bond Counsel fees and expenses (the “Counsel Fee Deposit™), (iii)a
$4.500 expense deposit for the cost/benefit analysis with respect to the project contemplated by
this Application (the “Cost/Benefit Deposit™), and (iv) a $500 expense deposit for the real
property tax valuation analysis, if applicable, with respect to the project contemplated by this
Application (the “Valuation Deposit™). The Application Fee will not be credited against any
other fees or expenses which are or become payable to the Agency in connection with this
Application or the project contemplated herein (the “Project™). In the event that the subject
transaction does not close for any reason, the Agency may usc all or any part of the Counsel Fee
Deposit, the Cost/Benefit Deposit and/or the Valuation Depasit to defray the cost of
Transaction/Bond Counsel fees and expenses, the cost of obtaining a cost'benefit analysis and/or
the cost of obtaining a real property tax valuation with respect to the Project. In the event that
the subject transaction does close, the Counsel Fee Deposit, the Cost/Benefit Deposit and the
Valuation Deposit shall be credited against the applicable expenscs incurred by the Agency with
respect to the Project,



Every signature page comprising part of this Application must be signed by the
Applicant or this Application will not be considered complete or accepted for consideration
by the Agency.

The Agency’s acceptance of this Application for consideration does not constitute a
commitment on the part of the Agency to undertake the proposed Project, to grant any financial
assistance with respect to the proposed Project or to enter into any negotiations with respect to
the proposed Project.

Information provided herein may be subject to disclosure under the New York Freedom
of Information Law (New York Public Officers Law § 84 et seq.) (“FOIL™). If the Applicant
believes that a portion of the material submitted with this Application is protected from
disclosure under FOIL, the Applicant should mark the applicable section(s) or page(s) as
“conlidential™ and state the applicable exception to disclosure under FOIL.

June 18, 2021
DATE




PART I. APPLICANT

APPLICANT FOR FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE:
~ Amsterdam House Continuing Care Retirement Community, Inc.

Name -
P — 300 East Overlook Drive, Port Washington, NY 11050
Fax:

NY State Dept. of

Labor Reg #; 04-544688 Federal Employer ID #: __

NAICS Code #: 029911

hilps:fthramstartamatharborside.com

Website:

Name of CEO or
Authorized Representative Certifying Application:

Title ofOfficer: | reSident & CEO

Phone Nutiber: 212 316-7711 E-Mail: jdavis@amsterdamnh.org

James Davis

BUSINESS TYPE (Check applicable status, Complete blanks as necessary):;

Sole Proprietorship _ General Partnership Limited Partnership
Limited Liability Company Privately Held Corporation
Publicly Held Corporation Exchange listed on

Not-for-Profit Corporation

Income taxed as: Subchapter S Subchapter C

30L{c)3) Corporation = Partnership
New York, 2004

State and Year of Incorporation/Organization:

(Qualified to do Business in New York: Yes No NiA ~

APPLICANT COUNSEL:



G.

Fimmame:  D€NNEtt Law Offices, P.C.
Addres: O Bond Street, Suite 300

Great Neck, NY 11021-2418
com Richard A. Dennett

Contact: —
Phuone: 516 504-1400

Fax: 516 214-8085

E-Mail: rden nett@denqeltlaw.cnm

Principal stockholders, members or partners, if any (i.e., owners of 10% or more of
equity/voting rights in Applicant):

Name Percentage owned
see schedule | o
- Yo

%

If any of the persons described in the response to the preceding Question, or a group of
said persons, owns more than a 50% interest in the Applicant, list all other entities which
are related to the Applicant by virtue of such persons having more than a 50% interest in
such entities:

see schedule |

Is the Applicant related to any other entity by reason of more than 50% common
ownership? If YES, indicate name of related entity and relationship:

YES NO

see schedule |

List parent corporation, sister corporations and subsidiaries, i’ any:

see schedule |




Has the Applicant (or any parent company, subsidiary, affiliate or related cntity or
person) been involved in, applied for or benefited by any prior industrial development
financing in the municipality in which this Project is located, whether by the Agency or
another issuer, or in a contiguous municipality? ("Municipality” herein means city, town
or village, or, if the Projeet is not in an incorporated city or village. Nassau County. ) If
Y ES, describe;

YES & NO

see schedule |

[s the Applicant (or any parent company, subsidiary, affiliate or related entity orperson)
or any principal(s) of the Applicant or its related entities involved in any litigation or
aware of any threatened litigation that would have a material adverse effeet on the
Applicant’s financial condition or the financial condition of said principal(s)? If YES,
altach details at Schedule I

YESX NO

Has the Applicant (or any parent company, subsidiary, affiliate or related entity or
person) or any principal(s) of the Applicant or its related entities, or any other businessor
concern with which such entitics, persons or principal(s) have been connected. ever been
involved, as debtor, in bankruptey, creditors rights or receivership proceedings or sought
protection from creditors? If YES, attach details at Schedule I

Yi‘rzs_}f(_ NO
Has the Applicant (or any parent company, subsidiary, affiliate or related cnfity or
person) or any principal(s) of the Applicant or its related entitics, ever been convicted of
any felony or misdemeanor (other than minor traffic offenses), or have any such related
persons or principal(s) held positions or ownership interests in any firm or corporation
that has been convicted of a felony or misdemeanor (other than minor traffic offenscs), or
are any of the foregoing the subject of a pending criminal proceeding or investigation? If
YES, attach details at Schedule I.

¥YES NO X_
Has the Applicant (or any parent company, subsidiary, affiliate or related entity or
person) or any principal(s) of the Applicant or its related entities, or any other businessor
concern with which such entities. persons or principal(s) have been connected, been cited
for (or is there a pending proceeding or investigation with respect to} a civil violation of
federal, state or local laws or regulations with respect to labor practices, hazardous
wastes, environmental pollution, taxation, or other operating practices? If YES, attach
details at Schedule 1.



YES NO X
Is the Applicant (or any parent company, subsidiary. affiliate or related entity or person)
or any principal(s) of the Applicant or its related entities, or any other business orconcern
with which such entities, persons or principal(s) have been connected, delinquent or have
any of the foregoing persons or entitics been delinquent on any New York State, federal
or local tax obligations within the past five (5) years? If YES, attach details at Schedule L.

YES NO X
Complete the following information for principals {(including, in the case ofcorporations,
otficers and members of the board of directors and, in the case of limited liability
company, members and managers) of the Applicant:

Mame Title Other Business Allihations
See Schadule I“

Do any of the foregoing principals hold elected or appointive positions with New York
State, any political division of New York State or any other governmental agency? If
YES. attach details at Schedule 1.

YESX NO

Are any of the foregoing principals employed by any federal, state or local municipality
or any agency, authority, department, board, or commission thereof or any other
governmental or quasi-governmental organization?

YES NO X

Operation at existing location(s) (Complete separate Section O for cach existing
location):

l. {a) Location: 300 E. Overlook, Port Washington, NY 11050

(b) Number of Employees: Full-Time: 88 Part-Time: 23

(¢} Annual Payroll, excluding benefits: $4,981.228

(d) Type of operation (e.g. manufacturing, wholesale, distribution, retail, etc.)
and products or services: continuing care retirgment community

{e) Size of existing facility real property
(1.e.. acreage of land), 8.9 acres

6



iy g ; 3 1 bld 000 sf
(f) Buildings (number and square footage of cach): sk

(g) Applicant’s interest in the facility

FEE Title: Lease:  Other (describe below):
The Agency is fee owner subject to installment sale agreement in favor of Applicant

& Will the completion of the proposed Project result in the removal ol a plant or
facility ofthe Applicant, or ol a proposed user, occupant or tenant of the Projeet,
or a relocation of any employee of the Applicant, or any employee ol aproposed
user, occupant or tenant of the Project, from onc arca of the State of New York
(but outside of Nassau County) to a location in Nassau County or in the
abandonment of such a plant or facility located in an area of the State of New
York outside of Nassau County? If YES, complete the attached Anti-Raiding
Questionnaire (Schedule D).

YES No X
3. Will the proposed Project result in the removal or abandonment of a plant or
tacility of the Applicant, or of a proposed user, occupant or tenant ofthe proposed
Project, or a relocation of any employee of the Applicant, or any employee of a
proposed user, occupant or tenant of the proposed Project, located within Nassau
County? If YES, identify the location of the plant or facility and provide
explanation.

YES NO X

Has the Applicant considered moving to another state or another location withinNew
York State? If YES, explain circumstances.

YES No X

Does any one supplier or customer account for over 50% of Applicant’s annual purchascs
or sales, respectively? I YES, attach name and contact information for supplier and/or
customer, as applicable:



X

YES NO
Daocs the Applicant (including any related entity or person) or any principal(s) of the
Applicant or its related entities, or any other business or concern with which suchentities,
persons or principal(s) have been connected, have any contractual or other relationship

with the Agency or the County of Nassau? If YES, attach details at Schedule],

'r'ESx NO

Nature of Applicant’s business (e.g., description of goods to be sold, products
manufactured. assembled or processed, services rendered):

continuing care retirement community

ANY RELATED PARTY PROPOSED TO BE A USER OF THE PROJECT-
. See schedule |
Name:

Relationship to Applicant: —

Provide the information requested in Questions A through S above with respect to
cach such party by attachment at Schedule 1,



Types of Financial Assistance Requested:

n Tax-Excempt Bonds

_/®  Taxable Bonds

/R Refunding Bonds

o Sales/Use Tax Exemption

mL Mortgage Recording Tax Exemption

. /®  Real Property Tax Exemption

] Other (specify): Restructuring of existing debt

Type of Proposed Project (check all that apply and provide requested information):

o New Construction of a Facility
Sguare footage:

I71 Addition to Existing Facility
Square footage of existing facility:
Square footage of addition:

'O Renovation of Existing Facility
Square footage of area renovated:
Square footage of existing facility:

Jz Acquisition of Land/Building
Acreage/square footage of land:
Square footage of building:

O Acquisition of Fumniture/Machinery/Equipment
List principal items or categories:

| Other (specify): restructuring of existing debt

Briefly describe the purpose of the proposed Project, the reasons why the Project is
necessary to the Applicant and why the Agency's inancial assistance is necessary, and
the effect the Project will have on the Applicant’s business or operations:

see scheduls |




Is there a likelihood that the proposed Project would not be undertaken by the Applicant
but for the granting of the tinancial assistance by the Agency? (If yes, explain; if na,
explain why the Agency should grant the financial assistance with respect to the proposed
Project)

YES NO

N/A

[f the Applicant is unable to arrange Agency financing or other Agency financial
assistance for the Project, what will be the impact on the Applicant and Nassau County?
Would the Applicant proceed with the Project without Agency financing or other Agency
financial assistance? Describe.

see schedule |

Location of Projeet:

Street Address:SOU E. Overlook Drive

City/Village(s): POrt Washington

North Hempstead

School District(s): EDFI Washington - 4

G—_ Block: 93 Liit: Eﬁﬁ
3010

Town(s):

Tax Map Scection:

Census Tract Number:

continuing care retirement community

Present use of the Project site:

fa) Whal are the current real estate taxes on the Project site? (If amount ofcurrent
taxes is not available, provide assessed value for each):

see schedule |

Cieneral: $
school: % see schedule |
Village: 4 see schedule H

(b) Are tax certioran proceedings currently pending with respect to the Project real
property? If YES, attach details at Schedule I including copies of pleadings,
decisions, elc.

L0



M.

YES No X

Describe proposed Project site ownership structure (i.e., Applicant or other entity):
see schedule |

To what purpose will the building or buildings to be acquired, constructed or renovated
be used by the Applicant? (Include description of goods to be sold, products to be
manufactured, assembled or processed and services to be rendered.)

Continuing care retirement community licensed under Article 46 of the New York State

Public Health Law providing independent living, enriched housing and skilled nursing to residents.

[f any space in the Project is to be leased to or occupied by third parties (i.e., parties not
related to the Applicant), or is currently leased to or occupied by third parties who will
remain as tenants, provide the names and contact information for each such tenant,
indicate total square footage of the Project to be leased to each tenant, and describe
proposed use by each tenant:

see schedule |

Provide, to the extent available, the information requested, in Part I, CQuestions A, B, D
and O, with respect to any party described in the preceding response.

see schedule |

Does the proposed Project meet zoning/land use requirements at proposed location?
vESX NO

1. Describe present zoning/land use: N/A

2. Describe required zoning/land use. il different: N/A

3, Ifa change in zoning/land usc is required, please provide details/status of any
request for change of zoning/land use requirements:

N/A




0.

Does the Applicant, or any related entity or person. currently hold a leasc or license on
the Project site? If YES, please provide details and a copy of thelcase/license.

x

YES N0

Doces the Applicant, or any related entily or person, currently hold fee title to (i.e. own)
the Project site?

YES MO

If YES, indicate:

{a) Date of purchase;

(h) Purchase price: §

(c) Balance of existing mortgage, if any: §

(d) Name of mortgage holder:

(e) Special conditions:

the Agency

[ NO, indicate name of present owner of Project site:

Does the Applicant or any related person or entity have an option or a contract to
purchase the Project site and/or any buildings on the Project site?

YES 5 NO

If YES, attach copy of contract or option at Schedule T and indicate:
ISA dated 11/1/2014

(b)  Purchase price: 5 N/A
N/A

{a) Date signed:

(c) Closing date:

Is there a relationship legally or by virtue of common control or ownership between the
Applicant {(and/or its principals) and the seller of the Project (and/or its principals)?
If YES. describe:

YES NO gt



Q. Will customers personally visit the Project site for cither of the tollowing economic
activities? If YES with respect to either economic activity mdicated below, complete the
attached Retail Questionnaire (Schedule E).

Sales of Goods: YES___ NOX Sales of Services: YES_ N0 X

R. Describe the social and economic conditions in the community where the Project site is
or will be located and the impact of the proposed Project on the community (including
impact on infrastructure, transportation, fire and police and other government-provided
services):

N/A - restructuring of existing debt

S. Identify the following Project parties (if applicable):

Architect: N/A
Engineer: N/A
Contractors:  N/A

T Will the Project be designed and constructed to comply with Green Buildimg Standards?
(iI' YES, describe the LEED green building rati ng that will be achieved):

MR,

yEs VA NO

L. Is the proposed Project site located on a Brownfield? (if YES, provide deseription of
contamination and proposed remediation)

YES No X

V. Will the proposed Project produce a unique service or product or provide a service thatis
not otherwise available in the community in which the proposed Project site is located?

YES X NO




Is the proposed Project site currently subject to an [DA transaction (whether through the
Agency or otherwise)? If yes, explain.

YES X NO

seea schedule H

PART 111 CAPITAL COSTS OF THE PROJECT

Provide an estimate of cost of all items listed below:

Item Cost

L. Land and/or Building Acquisition § see schedule |

2. Building Demolition A .

3 Construction/Reconstruction/Renovation 5

4, Site Work $ B

5. Infrastructure Work hY

6. Architectural/Engineering Fees h

7. Applicant’s Legal Fees $ o

8, Financial Fees b

9, Other Professional Fees 5 -

10. Furniture, Equipment & Machinery $ o

Acquisition (not included in 3. above)
I1. Other Soft Costs (describe) S S
12, Other (describe) b
Total ! - .

Estimated Sources of Funds for Project Costs:
a, Tax-Exempt IDA Bonds: $ see schedule | =
b. Taxable IDA Bonds: $
G: Conventional Mortgage Loans: $ -
d. SBA or other Governmental Financing; 5 =

Identity:
e, Other Public Sources (e.g., grants, tax credits): 5 -

Identify;




¢ Other Loans: b
g. Equity Investment: h
(excluding equity attributable to grants/tax credits)

TOTAL $

What percentage of the total project costs are
funded/financed from public sector sources: Yo

Have any of the above costs been paid or incurred (including contracts of sale or
purchase orders) as of the date of this application? If YES, describe particulars on a
separate sheet,

NIA

YLS NO

Are items of working capital, moving expenscs, work in progress, or stock in trade
mcluded in the proposed uses of the bond proceeds (if applicable)? If YES. provide
details:

YES X NO NOT APFLICABLE

see schedule |

Will any of the funds to be borrowed through the Agency’s issuance of bonds, if
applicable, be used to repay or refinance an existing morlgage, outstanding loan or an
outstanding bond issue? If YES, provide details:

YES X NO NOT APPLICABLE

see schedule |

Has the Applicant made any arrangement for the marketing or the purchase of the bonds
or the provision of other third party financing (if applicable)? If YES, indicate with
whom (subject to Agency approval) and provide a copy of any term sheet or commitment
letter issued with respect to such financing.

YES X NO NOT APPLICABLE

see schedule |




Q. Construction Cost Breakdown:

Total Cost of Construction:

& NA

Cost for materials:  §

% Sourced in County:

{sum of 2-5 and 10 1n
Question A above)

=]
=

% Sourced in State;

% (ingl, County)

Cost for labor: $
% Sourced in County:

o
E.lfﬂ

% Sourced in State:

%o (incl. County)

Cost for “other™ b

% Sourced in County:

%o

% Sourced in County:

% (incl. County)

The Applicant acknowledges that the transaction/bond documents may
include a covenant by the Applicant to undertake and document the total
amount of capital investment as set forth in this Application.

A If the Applicant presently operates in Nassau County, provide the current annual
payroll. Estimate projected payroll at the Project site in First Year, Second Year
and Third Year after completion of the Project:

Present First Ycar Second Year Third Year |
Full-time: S See Sched |. $ b S
Part-time:! |

List the average salaries or provide ranges of salaries for the following catcgories
ofjobs (on a full-time equivalency basis) projected to be retained/created in Nassau
County as a result of the proposed Project:

' Cate oy of Jobs

Average Salary or Range

Average Fringe Benefits or |

to be Retained:

of Salary:

Range of Fringe Benefits

Management

see schedule |

Professional

" Administralive

Production

Supervisor

_Lal:l OTer

LNOTE: The Ageney converts part-lime jobs into FTE's for evaluation and reporting purposes by
dividing the number of pari-time jobs by rwo (2).



Tndcpcndcnl
Contractor’
Other

' Category of Jobs Average Salary or Range = Average Fringe Benefits or |
to be Created: of Salary: | Range of Fringe Benefits

Management N/A
Professional
Administrative
" Production
Supervisor
Laborer
Independent
Contractor’
Other

The Agency may utilize the foregoing employment projections and the projections set
forth in Schedule C, among other things, to determine the financial assistance that will be
offered by the Agency to the Applicant. The Applicant acknowledges that the
transaction/bond documents may include a covenant by the Applicant to retain the
number of jobs, types of occupations and amount of payroll with respect to the Projectset
forth in this Application.

(i) Will the Applicant transfer current cmployees from existing location(s)? IFYES,
describe, please describe the number of current employees to be transferred and the
location from which such employees would be transferred:

X

YES NO

(i1) Describe the number of estimated full time equivalent construction jobs to be created
as a result of undertaking the project, to the extent any:

N/A

= As used in this chart, this category includes employees of independent contraclors.

17



3 s used in this chart, this calegory includes employees of independent contractors.

18



0

What, if any, is the anticipated increase in the dollar amount of production, sales or
services following completion of the Project?

$ N/A

What percentage of the foregoing amount is subject to New York sales and use tax?

NAA %4

What percentage of the Applicant’s total dollar amount of production, sales or services
(including production, sales or services rendered following completion of the Project) are
made to customers outside the economic development region (i.e., Nassau and Suffolk
Counties)?

i
! ]

Describe any other municipal revenues that will result from the Project (excluding the
above and any PILOT payments):

What 15 the estimated aggregate annual amount of goods and services to be purchased by
the Applicant for each year afler completion of the Project and what portion will be
sourced from businesses located in the County and the State (including the County):

Amount % Sourced in County %o Sourced n State
Year | $N/A =
Year 2 b3
Year 3 5

Describe, if applicable, other benefits to the County anticipated as a result of the Project.
including a projected annual estimate of additional sales tax revenue generated, directly
and indirectly, as a result of undertaking the project:

N/A - restructuring of existing debt

Estimated Value of Requested Financial Assistance:

Estimated Value of Sales Tax Benefit: § N/A
{12, gross amount of cost of goods and services

that are subject to state and local sales and use taxcs

multiplied by 8.625%)

19



$3D1 ,275.00

Estimated Value of Mortgage Tax Benefit:
ii.c., principal amount of mertgage loans
loans multiplied by [0.73%])

Estimated Property Tax Benefit:
Will the proposed Project utilize a properly tax

exemption benelit other than from the Agency:
(if s0, please deseribe)

enriin af pesting

Term of PILOT Requested:

Existing Property Taxes on Land and Building: §
Estimated Property Taxes on compleled Project: §
{without Agency financial assistance}

NOTE: Upon receipt of this Application by the Agency,

the Apency’s stalT will create a PILOT schedule and estimate
the amount of FILOT Benefit/Cost utilizing anticipated

tax rates and assessed valuation, and attach such information
as Exhibit A hereto.

0. Describe and estimate any other one-time municipal revenues (not including fees payable
to the Agency) that the Project will create:

N/A

A It applicable, has construction/reconstruction/renovation work on the Project begun? If
YES. indicate the percentage of completion:

1. {a) Site clearance YES NO "o complete

N/A

(b) Environmental YES NO % complete
Remediation
{c) Foundation ¥YES. N NKA % complete

N/A

(d) Footings YES NO % complete



D

N/A

(e) Steel YES NO % complete
{f) Masonry YES. NG N/A o complete
(g) Interior YES NO N/A "o complete
(h) Other (describe below):  YES NO) N/A % complete

2 IfNO to all of the above categories, what is the proposed date ofcommencement
of construction, reconstruction. renovation, installation or equipping of the
Project?

N/A - restructuring of existing debt

PProvide an estimate of time schedule to complete the Project and when the first use of the
Project 15 expected to occur;

N/A - restructuring of existing debt

What 15 the expected environmental impact of the Project”? (Complete the attached
Environmental Assessment Form (Schedule G)).

N/A - restructuring of existing Agency debt

Is an environmental impact statement required by Article 8 of the N.Y. Environmental
Conservation Law (i.¢., the New York State Environmental Quality Review Act)?

NOX

YES_
Please be advised that the Agency may require at the sole cost and expensc of the
Applicant the preparation and delivery to the Agency of an environmental report in form
and scope satisfactory to the Agency, depending on the responses set forth in the
Environmental Assessment Form. If an environmental report has been or is being
prepared in connection with the Project, please provide a copy.

The Applicant authorizes the Agency to make inquiry of the United States Environmental
Protection Agency, the New York State Department of Environmental Conservation or

21



any ather appropriate federal, state or local governmental agency or anthority as to
whether the Praject site or any property adjacent to or within the immediate vicinity of
the Project site is or has been identified as a site at which hazardous substances are being
or have been used, stored, treated, generated, transported, processed, handled, produced,
released or disposed of. The Applicant will be required to secure the written consent of
the owner of the Project site to such inquiries (if the Applicant is net the owner), upon

request of the Agency,

THE UNDERSIGNED HEREBY CERTIFIES. under penalties of perjury, that the answers and
mformation provided above and in any schedule, exhibit or statement attached hereto are true,
accurate and complete, to the best of the knowledge of the undersigned.

Sworn o before me thisd_{ s+

day ol \wee. 2207
CHAVA DA
Notary Public -
No 0 MHMYM;

WM% y

rJ
Fa

Name of
Applicant:

3 Gl ng Fxemnnl Communly, Ine

Signature; N

Name: James Davis
Title: President & CEQ
Date: June 18, 2021




CERTIFICATIONS AND ACKNOWLEDGMENTS
OF THE APPLICANT

FIRST:

The Applicant hereby certifies that, if financial assistance is provided by the Agency for the proposed
project. no funds of the Agency (i) shall be used in connection with the Project for the purpose of preventing
the establishment of an industrial or manufacturing plant or for the purpose of advertising or promotional
materials which depict elected or appointed government officials in either print or electronic media, (i) be
given o any group or organization which is atlempling to prevent the establishment of an industrial or
manutacturing plant within the State,

SECOND:

The Applicant hereby cermifies that no member, manager, principal, officer or director of the Applicant
or any affiliate thercof has any blood, marital or business relationship with any member of the Agency (or any
member of the family of any member of the Agency).

THIRD:

The Applicant hereby certifies that neither the Applicant nor any of its affiliates, nor any of their
respective parters, members, shareholders or other equity owners (other than equity owners of publicly-traded
companies), nor any of their respective employees, officers, directors, or representatives (i) is a person or
entity with whom United States persons or entities are restricted from doing business under regulations of the
Office of Foreign Asset Control (OFAC) of the Department of the Treasury, including those named on
OFAC’s Specially Designated and Blocked Persons List, or under any statute, executive order or other
governmental action, or {i1) has engaged in any dealings or transactions or is otherwise associated with such
persoms or entities,

FOURTII:

The Applicant hereby acknowledges that the Agency shall obtain and hereby authorizes the Agency to
obtain credit reports and other financial background information and perform other due diligenee on the
Applicant and/or any other entity or individual related thereto, as the Agency may deem necessary to provide
the requested financial assistance.

FIFTH:

The Applicant hereby certifies that cach owner, occupant or operator that would receive financial
assistance with respect to the proposcd Project is in substantial compliance with applicable federal, state and
local tax, worker protection and environmental laws, rules and regulations.

SIXTH:

The Applicant hereby acknowledges that the submission to the Agency of any knowingly false or
knowmgly misleading information may lead to the immediate termination of any financial assistance and the
recapture from the Applicant of an amount equal 1o all or any part of any tax exemption claimed by reason of
the Agency's involvemnent in the Project.

()
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SEVENTH:

The Applicant herchy certifies that, as of the date of this Application, the Applicant 1s in substantial

compliance with all provisions of Article 15-A of the General Municipal Law, including, hut not limited to, the
provisions of Section 85%-a and Section 862( 1) thereof,

EIG:HTH:

(1) Does the Project propose the ereation of housing?

(if)

YES Noi

IFYES, how many units?

IFYES, the Applicant hereby certifies that:

(a) the Applicant has adopted a Fair HousingEqual Housing Opportunity Policy substantially in
the form of Exhibit B to this Application;

(b} the proposed Project complies with applicable fair housing laws and that eligibility criteria for
housing i any part of the Project will not include any residency requirements or preferences,
including durational ones, age restrictions (unless for senior housing permitted by law), or other
discriminatory criteria;

i) the Applicant (1) has posted its Fair Housing/Equal Housing Opportunity Policy publicly; and
(2} will display fair housing law posters for consumers in its rental or sales office(s), in a form
substantially similar to the model fair housing posters attached to this Application as Exhibit C (the

Agency will provide applicants with fair housing law posters for display upon request by an
applicant); and

id) key employvees of the Applicant in charge of marketing and rental of the Project have
completed {or will complete within one vear of closing) four (4) hours of fair housing training
provided by Long Island Housing Services (“LIHS") at a reasunably acceptable time and location and
at no additional cost to the Applicant. In the event LIHS declines to provide or make available
reasonably acceplable no-cost fair housing training, the provisions of this Certification V11{i)d) shall
cease o be ol any force and effect,

It YES to (i) above, does the Project propose the ereation of “affordable™ or “workforce™ housing

{“Atftordable Housing™)?

YES MO

It YES, the Applicant hereby certifies that the Applicant (1) has adopted a non-discriminatory
affirmative marketing plan that meets the criteria set forth in Exhibit D to this Application; and (2}
will submit such marketing plan to the Agency in writing prior to closing.

ITYES, answer the following questions:

(a) What portion of the Project would consist of Affordable [Tousing (e.g., number ofunits)?
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() What are the cligibility requirements for the AfTordable Housing?

[c) Cite the specific source of such eligibilily requirements iv.p., federal, state or local law),

Mame of

ame: FrM s DAvyg
Title: Zpas /e e



CERTIFICATION AND AGREEMENT
WITH RESPECT TO FEES AND COSTS

Capitalized terms used but not otherwise defined in this Certification and Agreement shall have the
meanmgs assigned to such terms in the Applicauon.

The undersigned, being duly sworn, deposes and says, under penalties of perjury, as follows: that | am
the chief exccntive olTicer or other representative authorized to bind the Applicant named in the attached
application for financial assistance (“Application™) and that | hold the office specified below my signature at
the end of this Certification and Agreement, that | am authonized and empowered to deliver this Certification
and Agreement and the Application for and on behalf of the Applicant, that T am familiar with the contents of
said Application (including all schedules, exhibits and attachments thereto), and that said contents are true,
accurate and complete to the best of my knowledge and belief.

The grounds of my belief relative to all matters in the Application that are not based upon my own
personal knowledge are based upon investizations | have made or have caused to be made concerning the
subject matter of this Application, as well as upon information acquired in the course of my duties and from
the books and records of the Appheant,

As an authorized representative of the Applicant, I acknowledge and agree on behalf of the Applicant
that the Applicant hereby releases the Nassau County Industrial Development Agency, its members, officers,
servants, atterneys, agents and employees (collectively, the “Agency™) from, agrees that the Ageney shall not
be liable for and agrees o indemnify, defend (with counsel selected by the Agency) and hold the Agency
harmless from and against any and all lability, damages, causes of actions, losses, costs or expenses incurred
by the Agency in connection with: (A} examination and processing of, and action pursuant to or upon, the
Application, regardless of whether or not the Application or the financial assistance requested therein are
Favorably acted upon by the Agency. (B) the acquisition, constmuction, reconstruction, renovation, installation
and/or equipping of the Project by the Agency, and {C) any further action taken by the Agency with respect to
the Project; including, without limiting the generality of the foregoing, (i) all fees and expenses of the
Agency’s general counsel, transaction/bond counsel, economic development consultant, real property tax
valuation consultant and other attorneys, experts and consultants (if deemed necessary or advisable by the
Ageney), and (i1) all other expenses (including attorneys™ fees) incurred by the Agency in defending any suits,
actions or proceedings that may arise as a result of any of the toregoing. If, for any reason whatsoever, the
Applicant fails to conclude or consummate necessary negotiations or fails within a reasonable or specified
period of time to take reasonable, proper or requested action or withdraws, abundons, cancels, or neglects the
Application or if the Applicant is unable to find buyers willing to purchase the total bond 1ssue required or is
unable to secure other third party financing or otherwise fails to conclude the Project, then upon presentation
of an invoice by the Agency, its agents, attorneys or assigns, the Applicant shall pay to the Agency, its agents,
attorneys or assigns, as the case may be, all fees and expenses reflected in any such invoice.

As an authorized representative of the Applicant, I acknowledge and agree on behalf of the Applicant
that cach of the Agency's general counsel. transaction/bond counsel, economic development consultant, real
property tax valuation consultant and other experts and consultants is an intended third-party beneficiary of
this Certification and Apgreement. and that each of them may (but shall not be obligated to) enforce the
provisions of the immediately preceding paragraph, whether by lawsuit or otherwise, to collect the fees and
expenses ol such party or person incurred by the Agency (whether or not first paid by the Agency) with respect
to the Application,

Upon successtul closing of the required bond issue or other form ol (inancing or Agency assistance,
the Applicant shall pay to the Agency an administrative fee sel by the Agency (which amount is payable at
closing) in accordance with the followmg schedule:



(A)

(B)

(1]

(D)

(E)

(F}
(F)

(Ci)

{35

Taxable Bond Issues Six-tenths (6/10) of one percent (1%5) for the first twenty million dollars
{520, 000L000) of total project costs and, if applicable, two-tenths (2/10} of one pereent {1%)
for uny additional amounts in excess of twenty million dollars (520,000,000 of total project
costs,

Tax-Exempt Bond Issues — Six-tenths (6/10) ot one percent {1%5) ol otal project costs.

Straight-Lease Transactions Six-tenths (6/10) of one percent { 1%6) tor the first twenly million
dollars (S20.000,000) of total project costs and, i applicable, tovo-tenths (2/10) of one percent
{ 1%} for any additional amounts in excess of twenly million dollars (820,000,000} of total
project costs

General Counsel Fee - One-tenth (17107 of one percent ( 1%) of total project costs, with a
minimum fee of 54,001},

All Tnitial Transactions - Two Thousand Five Hundred Dollars (52, 500) closing compliance
fee pavable at closing and One Thousand Dollars ($1,000) per year (or part thereof)
administrative fee, payable in advance, at the closing for the first year (or part thereol) and on
January 15t of cach year for the term of the financing, The annual service fee is subject o
periodic review and may be adjusted from time to time in the discretion of the Agency.

Refundings — The Agency fee shall be determined on a case-by-case basis,
Assumptions — The Agency fee shall be determined on a case-by-case basis.

Modifications — The Agency fee shall be determined on a case-by-case basis, but in accordance
with the following schedule.

. A basic Consent - 8750
. A Transter of Benetits

. Basic - 83,000

. Complex - 56,000
. Extensions = 51,000

Terminations - The Agency fee shall be determined on a case-by-case basis, but in accordance
with the following schedule,

. Basic - $2.000
, Complex - $2,500

The Agency s transaction/bond counsel fees and expenses are payable at closing and are based on the
work performed in connection with the Project,

The Agency's transaction/bond counsel's tees, general counsel fee and the administrative fees may be
considered as a cost of the Project and included as part of any resultant financing, subject to compliance with

applicable law.

Guided by the above stated schedule amounts, upon the termination of the financing of the Project,
Applicant agrees to pay all costs in connection with any conveyance by the Agency to the Applicant of the
Ageney’s interest in the Projeet and the termination of all related Project documents, includmg the Tees and
expenses of the Agency’s general counsel, bond/transaction counsel, and all applicable recording, filing or
other related fees, taxes and charges.

et
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I further acknowledge and agree on hehallof the Applicant that, in the event the Agency shall have
used all of its available tax-exempt bond financing allocation from the State of New York, ilapplicable, and
shall accordingly be unable to obtain an additional allocation for the benefit of the Applicant, the Agency shall
have no liability or responsibility as a result of the inability of the Agency to issue and deliver tax-exempl
bonds for the benefit of the Applicant, :

ﬂtun-} :;] H"Hf-;.!‘";' b}}L’{
lithe: i rf/[‘_’,"f_s"!}

Subseribed and affirmed 1o me this 2.0 24
dayofdune 20

wHaA DAVIDOWIT L
Motary Public - State of New York
Mo. 01DAB403785
Qualifiad in Quasns County

My Commisskon Expires Pz



TABLE OF SCHEDULES:

Schedule Title Complete as Indicated RBelow

A Tax-Exempt Bond If Applicant checked “YES™ in Part [,
Manufacturing Questionnaire Cuestion H of Application, if applicable]|

B. New York State Financial and All applicants

Employment Requircments for
Industrial Development
Agencies

. Guidelines tor Access o All applicants
Employment Opportunities

D. Anti-Raiding Questionnaire It Applicant checked “YES™ in Part |,
Question (0.2, of Application

E. Retail Questionnaire If Applicant checked “YES™ in Part 11,
Cuestion O of Application

F. Applicant’s Financial All applicants
Attachments., consisting of:
1. Applicant’s linancial statements for the last two fiscal years (unless included
in Applicant’s annual reports).

2. Applicant’s annual reports (or Form 10-K's) for the two most recent fiscal yidrs.

3. Applicant’s quarterly reports (Form 10-Q7s) and current reports (Form B-K's) since the
most recent Annual Report, if any.

4.In addition, attach the financial information described above in items FI,F2, and Fiof
any anticipated Guarantor of the proposed transaction, if different than the Applicant,
including the personal financial statement of any anticipated Guarantor that is a natural

person,
G Environmental Assessment Form All applicants
H. Form NYS-45 (and 45-ATT) All applicants
I Other Antachments As required



z

hedule A

TAM-EXEMPT BOND MANUFACTURING QUESTIONNAIRE

(To be completed by the Applicant if the Applicant checked “YES™ in Part |, Question I of the
Application for Financial Assistance. if applicable).

Please complete the following questions for each facility to be financed. Use additional pages
a5 NCCessary,

L. Deseribe the production process which occurs at the facility to be financed.

bt

Allocate the facility to be financed by function (expressed in square footage) (g, production
line, employee lunchroom, offices, restrooms, storage, warchouse, loading dock, repair shop.
parking, research, sales, ete.) and location in relation lo production (e.g., same building,

adjacent land or building, oft-site, etc.). Please attach blueprints of the facility to be financed,

FUNCTION LOCATION S0. FOOTAGE
TOTAL
3 Of the space allocated w offices above, identify by function {e.g., executive offices. payrull,

production, ete.} and location in relation to production {e.g., same building, adjacent land or
building, ufT-site, etc.).

FUNCTION LOCATION S0, FOOTAGE
TOTAL
4. Of the space allocated to storage or warehousing above, identify the square footage and

location of the arcas devoted to storage of the following:
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S0. FOOTAGE LOCATION

Raw Materials used
for production of
manufactured goods

Finished product storage

Component parts of
goods manufacturcd at
the facility

Purchased component

parts
Other (specifyv) e s
TOTAL
5. List raw materials used at the facility to be financed in the processing of the finished
productis).
. List finished product(s) which are produced at the facility to be financed.

The UNDERSIGNED HEREBY CERTIFIES that the answers and information provided above and in any
statement attached hereto are true and correct,

Mame of
Applicant:

Signature:

Name:

Title:

Dhate:
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schedule B

NEW YORK STATE FINANCIAL AND EMPLOYMENT REPORTING
REQUIREMENTS FOR INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCIES

A Pursuant to applicable law, the Agency requires the completion of an [nitial Emplovment Plan (sce
Schedule C) and a year-end employment plan status report, bath of which shall be filed by the Nassan
County Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency™) with the New York State Department of
Economic Development, The Project documents will require the Applicant to provide such repart to
the Agency on or before February 11 of the succeeding vear, together with such emplovment
verification information as the Agency may require,

Except as otherwise provided by collective bargaining agreements, the Applicant agrees to list any
new employment opportunities with the New York Department of Labor Community Services
Division and the administrative entity of the service delivery area created by the Federal Job Training
Partnership Act (P.L. 97-300}), ot any successor statute thereto (the “ITPA Entities™). In addition,
except as otherwise provided by collective bargaining agreements, the Applicant, where practicable,
will first consider persons eligible to participate in JTPA programs who shall be referred by the JTPA
Entities for such new employment opportunitics.

H: The Applicant will be required to file annually a statement with the New York State Department of
Taxation and Finance and the Agency of the value of all sales or use tax exemplions claimed in
connection with the Project by reason of the involvement of the Agency.

C The following information must be provided for all bonds issued, outstanding or retired duringthe
Yiear:

Name, address and owner of the project; total amount of tax exemptions granted (broken out by
state and local sales tax, property taxes, and mortgage recording tax); payments in lieu of taxcs
made; total real estate taxes on the Project prior to exemption; number of jobs created and
retained, and other cconomic benefits realized.

Date of issue; interest rate at end of year; bonds outstanding at beginning of year; bonds issued
during year; principal payments made during year; bonds outstanding at end of vear; federal tax
status; and maturity date{s),

Failure to provide any of the aforesaid information will be constitute a DEFAUL'T under the Project
documents to be entered into by the Agency and the Applicant in connection with the proposed Project.



Please sign below to indicate that the Applicant has read and understood the ahove and agrees to provide the
deseribed information on a timely basis

Mame of

Applicant:

Signature;

Mame: lames Davis
Title: President & CEQ
[ate: June 18,2021

(]
(e



Schedule

GUIDELINES FOR ACCESS TO EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITIES

INITIAL EMPLOYMENT PLAN

Prior to the expenditure of bond proceeds or the granting of other linancial assistance, the Applicant shall
complete the following mitial employment plan:

Amstardam House Continuing Care Relirement Communily, Inc.

Applicant Name: o :
. 300 E Overlook Drive, Port Washington, NY 11050

Address:

Type of Business: continuing care retirement commu nity

Contact Person: James Davis Tel No.. 212 3167711

Please complete the following table describing the projected full-time equivalent employment plan for the
proposed Project following receipt of financial assistance:

Estimated Number of Estimate of Number of
Full Time Equivalent Residents of the LMA®
Jobs After Cu:r_mplﬁlinn that would fill such jobs
u_E‘lhe Project: - by the third vear
Current and Present Jobs
Planned Occupations Per Occupation | vear 2 vears 3 vears
1375 FTEs 14 FTEs
Manageiment = == _ -
. 5.03 FTEs 4.42 FTEs
Professional
.. . ¥.27 FTEs 9.3 FTEs
Admimstrative e
Production S
Supervisor % _
Laborer =
BZ.81FTEs
Independent Contractor N -
6361 FTEs 7680 FTEs

Orther (describe) N -

Y NOTE: Convert part-time jobs into FTE's for evaluation and reporting purposcs by dividing the number
of part-lime johs by two {25

2 The “LMA" means the Local Market Area, which is defined by the Agency as Nassau and Sulfolk
Counties. The Labor Market Areq is the same as the Leng Tsland Economic Development Region, as established
pursuant to Section 230 of the New York State Economic Development Law
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Flease indicate the number of temporary construetion jobs anticipated to be created in connection with the
acquisition, construction and’or renovation of the Project: KA

Please indicate the estimated hiring dates for the new jobs shown above and any special recruitment or training
that will be required:

A

Are the Applicant’s employees curvently covered hy a collective bargaining agreement?
YIS M X

1IF YES, Union Mame and Local:

Please note that the Ageney may utilize the foregoing employinent projections, among other things, to
determine the financial assistance that will be offered by the Agency to the Applicant. The Applicant
acknowledges that the transaction’bond documents may include a covenant by the Applicant to retain the
above number of jobs, types of pccupations and ameunt of payroll with respect to the propased project,

Attached hereto as Schedule H is a true, correct and complete copy of the Applicant’s most recent Quarterly
Combined Withholding, Wage Reporting, and Unemployment Insurance Return (Form NY5-45 and 45-A1T),
Lipon request of the Agency, the Applicant shall provide such other or additional information or
documentation as the Agency may require with respect to e Applicant’s current employment levels in the
Slate of New York,

The UNDERSIGNED HEREBY CERTIFIES that the answers and intormation provided above and inany
statement attached hereto are Lrue, correet and complete.

Mame of

Applicant: : : o e oy .
Signature:

Mame: James Davis

Title; President & CEQ

Drate: dune 1 B, 2021
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Schedule D
NTI- IES

(To be completed by Applicant if Applicant checked “YES™ in Part 1, Question O of the Application for
Financial Assistance)

Al Will the completion of the Project resull in the removal of a plant or facility of the
Applicant, or of a proposed user, occupant or tenant of the Project, or a relocation ofany
employee of the Applicant or of a proposed user, occupant or tenant of the Project, from
an area in New York State (but outside of Nassau County) to an arca within Nassau
County?

YES NO

[t the answer to Question A is YES. please provide the following information:

Address of the to-be-removed plant or facility or the plants or facilities from which employces are relocated:

Names of all current users, occupants or tenants of the to-be-removed plant or facility:

B. Will the completion of the Project result in the abandonment of ene or more plants or
facilitics of the Applicant, or of a proposed user, occupant or tenant of the Project,
located in an arca of the State of New York other than in Nassau County?

YES N0
[f'the answer to Question B is YES, please provide the following information:

Addresses of the to-be-abandoned plants or facilitics:

Names ot all current occupants of the to-be-abandoned plants or facilities:




P

Has the Applicant contacted the local industrial development agency at which its current
plants or facilities in New York State are located with respect to the Applicant’sintention
to move or abandon such plants or facilitics?

YES o N :
[f the answer to Question C is YES, please provide details in a separate atlachment,

I THE ANSWER TO EITHER QUESTION A OR B IS “YES”, ANSWER QUESTIONS D ANDE,

D. Is the Project reasonably necessary to preserve the competitive position of the Applicant,
or of a proposed uscr, occupant or tenant of the Project, in its industry?

YES NO

E Is the Project reasonably necessary to discourage the Applicant. or a proposeduser,
occupant or tenant of the Project, from removing such plant or facility to a location
outside of the Statc of New York?

YES NG

IF THE ANSWLR TO EITHER QUESTION D OR E IS “YES”, PLEASE PROVIDE DETAILS IN A
SEPARATE ATTACHMENT,

Accordingly, the Applicant certifies that the provisions of Section #62( 1) of the General Municipal Law will
not be violated if financial assistance is provided by the Agency for the proposed Project,

NOTE: If the proposed Project involves the removal or abandonment of a plant or facility of the Applicant, or

a proposed user, occupant or lenant of the Project, within the State of New York, notification will he made by

the Agency to the chief exceutive officer(s) of the municipality or municipalities in which such plant ar facilivy
was located.

THE UNDERSIGNED IIERERY CERTIFIES that the answers and information provided above and in any
statement atlached herelo are true, correct and complete.

Wame of
Apphicant;

Signature;

MName:

Title:

[Date:
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Schedule E

RETAIL QUESTIONNAIRE

(To be completed by Applicant if Applicant checked cither “YES™ in Part I, Question Q of the Application for
Fimancial Assistance)

A, Will any portion of the Project (including that portion of the cost to be financed from equity orsources
other than Agency linancing) consist of facilitics or property that are or will be primarily used in
making retail sales to customers who personally visit the Project?

YES NO
For purposes ol Question A, the terim “retail sales™ means (i) sales by a registered vendor under Article 28 of
Tax Law of the State of New York (the “Tax Law™) primarily engaged in the retail sale of tangible personal
property (as defined in Scetion 1101{(b)Y4)(1) of the Tax Law), or {ii) sales of a service to customers whuo
personally visit the Project.

B. If the answer lo Question A is YES, what percentage of the cost of the Project (including that portion
of the cost to be financed from equity or sources other than Agency financing) will be expended on
such facilitics or property primarily used in making retail sales of goods or services o customers who
personally visit the Project?

Y

& If the answer to Question A is YES, and the amount entered fur Question B is ereater than 33,33%,
indicale whether any of the fillowing apply to the Project:

l [s the Project likely to attract a significant number of visitors from outside the economic
development region (i.e.. Massau and Suffolk Counties) in which the Project is or will be
located?

s N

2 [s the predominant purpose of the Project to make available goods or services which would
not, but for the Project, be reasonably accessible to the residents of the city, town orvillage
within which the Project will be located, because of a lack of reasonably accessible retail
trade facilities ofTering such goods or services?

YES NO ;

3 Will the Project be located in one of the following: {a) an arca designated as an empire zone
pursuant to Article 18-B of the General Municipal Law; or (b) a census tract or block
nurmbering area {or census tract or block numbering arca comtiguous thereto) which,
according to the most recent census data, has (1) a poverty rate of at least 20% for the year in
which the data relates. or at least 20% of the households receiving public assistance, and (ii)
an unemployment rate of at least 1.25 times the statewide unemployment rate for the year Lo
which the data relates?

YES NO __



If the answer to any of the subdivisions | through 3 of Questien C 15 YES, attach details.

3. If the answer to any of the subdivisions 2 through 3 of Question C is YES, will the Project preserve
permanent, private sector jobs or inerease the overall number of permanent, private sector jubs i the
State of New York? [IYES, attach details,

¥he. - NO
E: State percentage of the Applicant’s annual gross revenucs comprised of each of the following:
Retail Sales: % Services: %
F, State percentage of Project premises utilized for same:
Retail Sales: . % Services: %

The UNDERSIGNED HEREBY CERTIFIES that the answers and information provided above and in any
statemenl attached hereto are true, correct and complete.

Name of
Applicant:

Sigmatore:

Mame:
Title:

Date:
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Independent Auditor's Report

Board of Directors

Amsterdam House Continuing Care
Retirement Community, Inc.

Port Washington, New York

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Amsterdam House Continuing Care
Retirement Community, Inc.. which comprise the balance sheet as of December 31, 2018, and the
related statements of operations and changes in net assets and cash Hows for the year then ended, and
the related notes to the financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible tor the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of mternal control relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Char responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our andit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement,

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements, The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the nsks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, In making those nisk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are approprate in the circumnstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the tinancial statements,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sulTicient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.

PIPRAXITY



Board of Directors

Amsterdam House Continuing Care
Eetirement Community, Inc.

Page 2

Opinion

[n our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Amsterdam House Continuing Care Retirement Communily, [ne, as of
December 31, 2018, and the results of its operations, the changes in its nct asscts and its cash flows
tor the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles gencrally accepted in the United
States of America.

Emphasis of Matters

As described in Note 2 to the financial statements, in 2018, Amsterdam House Continuing Care
Retirement Community, Inc. adopted ASU 2016-14, Not-for-Profit Entities (Topic 9358): Presentation
of Financial Statements of Noi-for-Profit Entities, Accounting Standards Codification 606, Revenue

from Contracts with Customers and ASU 2016-18 Statement of Cash Flows (Topic 230} Restricted
Cash. Our opinion is not modified with respect to these matters,

Prior Year Audited by Other Auditors

The 2017 financial statements were audited by other auditors, and their report thereon, dated April 26,
2018, expressed an unmodified opinion.

BED L

New York, New York
January 23, 2020



Amsterdam House Continuing Care

Retirement Community, Inc.

Balance Sheets

December 31, 2018 and 2017

Assets

Current Assels
Cash and cash equivalents
Security deposits held in trust
Accounts recetvable, net tor 2017
LEntrance fees receivable
Assets limited a3 to use
Prepaid expenses and other assets

Total curment assets
Assets Limited as to Use
Other Assels
Advertising and marketing costs
Property and equipment, net of accumulated
depreciation of 2008 - $34.005 038; 2017 -
$47.373,630

Total other assels

Total assels

See Motes lo Financial Sfatements

2018 2017
5 |.628.122 2,527,144
209,028 107,250
TR AN T08, 746
1LR0R, 939 -
16,035,363 19,325 004
ik, 761 M2 50
201,851,324 22874510
w603, 50 8,508,985
- 100 6,450

204,955,790

211,125,392

204,955,790

212,142,332

2

§ 234450414

243,525 827




Amsterdam House Continuing Care
Retirement Community, Inc.

Balance Sheets (Continued)
December 31, 2018 and 2017

2018 2017
Liabilities and Net Assets {Deficit)
Current Liabilities
Accounts pavable and accmed expenses 5 2418204 2433 341
Relundable entrance fees 4,807,745 6,265,927
Conversion and wait list deposits relundable 345,893 425,957
Averued interest payahle 4,857,682 4,897,651
Cument portion of long-termdebt 1,542 458 1445402
Security deposils 209028 107.250
Toal current habilibies 14,181,000 15 507 525
Long-Term Liabilities
Accrued development foes 41,667 41,667
Refundable entrance fees 133464111 148 592 369
Monrelundable entrance fees 2hB0E.413 26,594 407
Accrued interest payahle 3,105,016 JEILI00
Long-term debt 200,791,108 202,113,348
Subvention
Subordinate note, Health Svstem 300K CI00 3000,000
Accmed interest 3342 404 3,104,592
Future service oblizalion 34 313, (0H) A0 514,000
Tuotal leng-term liabilities 436,863,719 427,793 967
Taotal liahilities A1 046,729 443 391 445
Met Assets (Deficit), Without Donor
Restrictions, Undesignated (206,590,315) [ 199,863 668)
Total habilines and net assets (deficin $ 234450414 T 243525827

See MNotes to Financial Statements



Amsterdam House Continuing Care
Retirement Community, Inc.

Statements of Operations and Changes in Net Assets
Years Ended December 31, 2018 and 2017

2018 2017
Operating Revenues
Resident and patienl services (net of contractual
allowances and discounts) § 21638604
Provizion for uncollectible accounts 139.258)
Resident and patient services revenue (net of 2017
provision for uncollectible accounts) 0 2.291.707 21,599 346
Amortization of nonrefundable entrance fees S273.009 4,700,577
Other operating revenues 324,035 276,723
Total pperaling revenues 26,888,751 26,666,646
Operating Pxpenses
Program Lxpenses, Resident Care Services
Resident services T43. 73R 7324973
Enriched housing 1,430, 508 1,260,392
Skilled nursing 5236707 3424 461
Ancillary and therapy a1, 1889 fRR,150
Building maintenance services 929,634 867,523
Dimning services 4,076,352 3763100
Emergency systemm services 119264 138,058
Grounds mainlenance services 85,728 101,332
Housekeeping services 970,649 U23,752
Transporation services 263,041 239,188
Ultilities L.515,053 1,360,662
Insumnce AT 308,153
Payment n liew of taxes 446,919 434,636
Homeowner's fees 1597654 75,021
Other fees 23248 [ 63,5400
Interest expense 11,207,298 11472108
Depreciation and amortiztion 6,732,640 i 0, B B0
Total program expenses, resident care services 35,336,761 34,752,552

See Motes to Financial Statemeants
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Amsterdam House Continuing Care

Retirement Community, Inc.
Statements of Operations and Changes in Net Assets (Continued)
Years Ended December 31, 2018 and 2017

General and Administrative Expenses

Admimstrative scrvicos

Marketing scrvices

Management fees

Amortization of capitalized advertismy

and marketing costs

Interest expense on subvention
Total general and administrative expenses
Total operating expenses

Operating Loss
Other Income {Loss )
Interest incoms
Loss on disposal ol property and equipment
Total other income
Deficiency of Revenues Oher Expenses
Future service obligation adjustments
Change m unrcalized loss on investments
Change in Net Assets Without Denor Restrictions

MNet Assets (Deficit), Beginning of Year

MNet Assels (Deflicit)y, End of Year

See Nofes fo Financial Statameants

2018 2017

5 L514,250 b 1,350,428
145517 1.00K,024
B39.A03 834334
1016540 L A88,990
237813 213,750
4.673.923 4.557.532

AN GRS 39,640,084
(13,121,930 (12.973.438)
271,902 161,826
{17,830} -

254,072 161,826
(12,867.861) (12811,612)
0,20 00 BTR (00
(63.786) [76,822)
(6,730.647) {12.010,434)

[ 199.865.668) {1R7,855,234)
§O0G5%G315) 5 (194L.865,668)




Amsterdam House Continuing Care
Retirement Community, Inc.

Statements of Cash Flows
Years Ended December 31, 2018 and 2017

2017
(As Adjusted -
2018 Note 2)
Operating Activities
Change in net assets without donor restnctions $ 0 (ATMAT) S {12,010434)
ltems not requiring (providing j operating cash flows
Depreciation and amoriizalion 6,732,640 3,640, B0
Amartization of adverlising and marketing costs 1,016,940 | 488 S
Amortization of bond issuance costs inchided
in interssl expense 215218 223812
Entrance fees recerved 24,098,276 16h642. 103
Admorizalion of nonrefundable entrance feeas (5,273,009 (4, THLETT)
Change m unrealized loss on investiments 63, 78O 76,522
Loss on disposal of property and equipiment 17,830 -
Future service obligation adjustments (6,201,000 {RTEOO0)
Changes m
Accounts receivable {194 3635) [3A4H)
Entrance foe receivahle {1, R08,939) 338,574
Prepaid cxpenses and other assets {104,457) 69,078
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (37,137) 483,105
Conversion and wait hst deposits relundable (A ) 161,259
Accrued interest payable 1,233,747 BRO A48
Security deposits [01.778 {70,370)
Acerued interest pavable on subvention 237,812 213,750
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 13,291 404 15,474,998
Investing Activitics
Purchase of property and cquipment (5RO, B65) 1,039,965}
Change in assets limited as to use (421,773) i1, 160,30
Met cash used m mvesting activities 1,002 642) (2.200,268)

See Notes to Financial Statements



Amsterdam House Continuing Care
Retirement Community, Inc.

Statements of Cash Flows (Continued)
Years Ended December 31, 2018 and 2017

2M7
{As Adjusted -
2018 Note 2)
Financing Activities
Principal payments ol long-term debi § (1445402 S (13,068,794
Relund ol entmnee fees (15,197 985) {706 5560)
Net cash used in financing activities (16,643,387} {200,155 630
Change in Cash, Cash Fuivalents Restricted Cash
and Hestricted Cash Fouivalents 14.354,6200 (6, 80,920}
Cash, Cas h Fguivalents, Resiricted Cash and Resiricted
Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year 22,240,525 20.121.445
Cash, Cash Equivalents, Restricted Cash and Restricted
Cush Equivalents, End of Year & 17 RR5905 $ 2220525
Reconciliation of Cash and Cash Fauivalents
to the Balance Sheets
Cash and cash equivalents in current assets b 1,628,122 § 0 2527144
Security deposits held in trust in current assets 208,028 107,250
Cash and cash equivalents o assels limited as to use 16,045,755 19,606,131
§  I78R5E03 § 22240525
Supplemental Cash Flows Information
Cash paid durmg the vear for interest b R R LY 5 10,359,849
Entrance fees received in cash, net of refunds,
other than initizl entrance feas b 5417402 5 11,377,592

See MNotes fo Financial Statemants



Amsterdam House Continuing Care
Retirement Community, Inc.

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2018 and 2017

Note 1:  Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Organization

Amsterdam House Continuing Care Retirement Community, Inc. (AHCCRC, Inc.) was established
as a not-for-profit corporation on January 30, 2004. AHCCRC, Inc. is exempt from federal income
tax under Internal Revenue Code Section 501{c)(3). Amsterdam Continuing Care Health System,
Inc. {the Health System) 1s the sole corporate member of AHCCRC, Ine,

AHCCRC, Ine. operates a continuing care retirement community, licensed under Article 46 of the
Public Health Law, known as The Amsterdam at Harborside, located in Part Washington, New
York, which includes: 229 independent living apartments, 26 enriched housing units and 18 special
needs assisted living units, 36 skilled nursing bads and related common areas and amenities and
related infrastructure (collectively, the Community),

AHCCRC, Inc. is supported by entrance fees, monthly service fees from residents and third party
reimbursement [or the skilled nursing beds.

Basis of Accounting

The financial statements are prepared on the acerual basis of accounting,

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilines and disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues
and expenses during the reporting period.  Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include highly liquid instruments with maturities, when acquired, of
three months or less,

At December 31, 2018, AHCCRC, Ine.’s cash accounts exceeded federally insured limits by
approximately 4.4 million,

Security Deposits Held in Trust

Security deposits held in trust are maintained in a scparate interest-bearing bank account,



Amsterdam House Continuing Care
Retirement Community, Inc.

Motes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2018 and 2017

Accounts Recejvable

Aceounts receivable are stated at the amount of consideration from residents to which AHCCRC,
Inc. expects to be entitled in exchange for providing resident and patient care services. AHCCRC,
Inc. performs individual credit risk assessments which evaluate the individual circumstances,
abilities and intentions of each resident prior to providing services. It subsequent to providing
services AHCCRC, Inc. becomes aware of resident-specific events, facts or circumstances
indicating a resident no longer has the ability or intention to pay the amount of consideration to
which AHCCRC, Inc. expected to be entitled for providing services, then the related receivable
balances are written off as bad debt expense and reported in the statements of operations and
changes in net assets as other operating expenses.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

For the year ending December 21, 2017, an allowance for doubtful accounts is charged if the
receivable is determined to be uncollectible based on peniodic review by management. Factors
used 1o determine whether an allowance should be recorded include the age of the receivable and a
review of payments subsequent to year end. Interest is not acerued or recorded on outstanding
receivables,

Contract Assels

A contract asset 1s recorded when AHCCRC, Inc. has an unconditional right to consideration in
exchange for goods or services that AIICCRC. Inc. has transferred to the resident. There are no
contract asscts al December 31, 2018,

Advertising and Marketing

Capitalized direct response advertising and marketing costs are amortized on the straight-line basis
over the average expected life of the original occupancy contracts of eight years. S1 488996 of
amorlization expense was recorded for the vear ended December 31, 2017,

In addition, for the years ending December 31, 2018 and 2017 advertising expenses of $292 426
and 5272,501, respectively, were expensed when meurred.
Property and Equipment

Property and equipment with a cost of $1,000 or more and an estimated useful life of greater than
one year are capitalized at cost. Depreciation and amortization are recorded on the straight-line
method aver the estimated useful lives of the assets.



Amsterdam House Continuing Care
Retirement Community, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2018 and 2017

Long-Lived Asset Impairment

AHCCRC, Inc. evaluates the recoverability of the carrying value of long-lived assets whenever
cvents or circumstances indicate the carrying amount may not be recoverable, [I'a long-lived asset
is tested for recoverability and the undiscounted estimated future cash flows expected to result
[rom the use and eventual disposition of the asset are less than the carrying amount of the asset, the

asset cost 15 adjusted to fair value and an impairment loss is recognized as the amount by which the
carrying amount of a long-lived asset exceeds its fair value.

Mo asset impairment was recognized during the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017,

Contract Liability

Contract liabilities represent AHCCRU, Inc.’s obligation to provide services to residents when

consideration has already been received from the resident, and represent the non-refundable portion
of resident entrance fees.

Sigmificant changes in contract liabilities during 2018 are as follows:

Balance, beginning of year £ 26,394,491
Effects of
Revenue recognieed from amortization
ofnonrefindable entrance foes (5,273,008}
Transters to nonrelfundable entrance fees 5,4%6,931
Balance, end of year § 26808413
Refund Liability

The consideration AHCCRC, Inc. has received from residents for which it does not expect to he
entitled is recorded as a refund liability, as further discussed in Notes 6 and 7.

Bond Issuance

Bond issuance costs are reflected as a reduction of the carrving amount of the related debt, and are
amortized on the effective interest method over the term of the related debt. Amortization of bond
issuance costs is included in interest expense,

17



Amsterdam House Continuing Care
Retirement Community, Inc.

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2018 and 2017

Future Service Obligation

In accordance with GAAP, if the advance and periodic fees that are charged to continuing care
residents arc insufficient to meet the costs of providing future services and the use of the facilities
to those tesidents, AIICCRC, Ine. records a liabilily based on actuarial assumptions on estimates of
future costs and revenues and on historical experience and statistical data. The determination of
whether a liability should be reported is made on an annual basis, If it is determined that such a
liability should be recorded, it is equal to the present value of future net cash outflows minus the
balance of unamortized deferred revenues, plus unamortized costs of acquiring the related initial
continuing-care contracts plus allocable depreciation of facilities to be charged related to the
contracts, Cash inflows include revenue contractually committed to support the residents and
monthly fees. Cash outflows include operating expenses, including interest expense and excluding
selling, general and administrative expenses. Anticipated increases in revenues and expenses are
included in estimating cash flows associated with providing services to continuing care residents,
At December 31, 2018 and 2017, AHCCRC, Inc. recognized a future service obligation of
$34.313.000 and $40,514,000, respectively. This obligation was calculated using a discount rate of
5.5 percent for both years, The change in the future service obligation 1s recognized on the
statements of operations and changes in net assets as a future service obhigation adjustment.
Adjustments for the years ended December 31. 2018 and 2017 were $6,201,000 and $878,000,
respectively.

Net Assets

Net assets, revenues, gains and losses are classified based on the existence or absence of donor- or
orantor-imposed restrictions. Net assets without donor restrictions are available for use in general
operations and not subject to donor restrictions,

Resident and Patient Services

In 2017, resident and patient services are reported at the estimated net realizable amounts from
residents, third-party payors and others for services rendered, including estimated retroactive
adjustments under reimbursement agreements with third-party payors. Retroactive adjustments are
accrued on an estimated basis in the period the related services are rendered and adjusted in future
periods as tinal settlements are determined.

Resident and paticnt services are recognized on a monthly or daily basis as AIICCRC, Inc.
provides services Lo residents and patients. Revenue 18 reported at the amount of consideration
which AHCCRC, Ine. expects to be entitled in exchange for providing residential and health care
services. AHCCRC, Ine. determines the transaction price based on standard charges for goods and
services provided minus any implicit price concessions. Fees are recognized as revenue in the
related month of occupancy.

12



Amsterdam House Continuing Care

Retirement Community, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2018 and 2017

AHCCRC, Ine. signed an agreement with the New York State Department of Health in connection
with Universal Settlement, which provides additional reimbursement in lieu of any outstanding rate
appeals for the skilled nursing facility beds. Notification has been provided indicating that the
facility will receive S444,186 over five vears. Said amounts may be offset by legal fees and may
be subject to additional approvals. The financial statements include S88 837 ol income in
accordance with the settlement for both the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017,

Deficiency of Revenues Over Expenses

‘The statements of operations and changes in net assets include a deficiency of revenues over
expenses. Changes in net assets without donor restrictions which are excluded from the deficiency
of revenues over expenses, consistent with industry practice, include change in unrealized loss on
investments and future service oblization adjustments,

Functional Allocation of Expenses
The costs of providing AHCCRC, Inc.’s programs and other activitics have been summarized on a

functional basis. Certain costs have been allocated among the program, management and general
categories based on the direct expense charged and square footage use,

Income Taxes

AHCCRC, Ine. is exempt from income taxes under Section 301 of the Internal Revenue Code and a
similar provision of state law. However, AHCCRC, Inc. is subject 1o federal income tax on any
unrelated business taxable income.

AHCCRC, Inc. files tax returns in the U.S. federal jurisdiction.

Subsequent Events

Subsequent events have been evaluated through January 23, 2020, which is the date the financial
statements were issued.

73



Amsterdam House Continuing Care
Retirement Community, Inc.

MNotes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2018 and 2017

Note 2: Change in Accounting Principles

Not-for-Profit Entities (Topic 958): Presentation of Financial Statements of Not-for-
Profit Entities

In 2018, AHCCRC, Inc. adopted ASU 2016-14, Not-for-Profit Entities (Topic 938): Presentation
of Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Entities. A summary of the changes is as follows:

A summary of the changes by tinancial statement area is as follows:
Balance sheet:

*  The balance sheet distinguishes between two new classes of net assets — those with donor-
imposed restrictions and those without. This 1s a change from the previously required three
classes of net assets — unrestricted, temporarily restricted and permanently restricted,

Statement of operations and changes in net assets:
» Expenses are reported by both nature and function in one location.

* Investment income is shown net of external and direct internal investment expenses. There
15 1o longer a requirement to include a disclosure of those netted expenses.

Notes to the financial statements:

¢  Enhanced guantitative and qualitative disclosures provide additional information useful in
assessing liquidity and cash flows available to meet operating expenses for one year from
the date of the balance sheet.

This change had no impact on previously reported total change in net assets.

Topic 606 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

On January 1, 2018, AHCCRC, Inc. adopted Topic 606, Revenue from Contracts with Customers
{Topic 606), using a modified-retrospective method of adoption to all contracts with patients at
January 1, 2018. The core guidance in Topic 606 is o recognize revenue to depict the transfer of
promised poods or services to customers or patienls in amounts that reflect the consideration to
which AHCCRC, Inc. expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The amount
to which AHHCCRC, Ine. expects to be entitled is calculated as the transaction price and recorded as
revenue in exchange for providing services to its residents. Adoption of Topic 606 resulted in
changes in presentation of the financial statements and related disclosures in the notes to the
tinancial statements. Prior to the adoption of Topic 606, the majority of the provision for doubtful
accounts related to residents without insurance. as well as co-pays, co-insurance and deductibles
for residents with insurance. Under Topic 606, the estimated amounts due from residents for which
AHCCRC, Inc. does not expect to be entitled or collect from the patients, that is not due to credit
risk, are considered implicit price concessions and excluded from AHCCRC, Tnc.'s estimation of
the transaction price or revenue recorded.

14



Amsterdam House Continuing Care
Retirement Community, Inc.

Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2018 and 2017

The adoption had no impact on deficiency of revenues over expenses, overall change in net assets

or net cash provided by operating activities,

ASU 2016-18 Statement of Cash Flows (Topic 230): Restricted Cash

In 20 &, ATICCRC, Inc. changed its method of accounting for restricted cash and restricted cash
equivalents by early adopting the provisions of Accounting Standards Update No. 2016-18 {ASU
2016-18), Statement of Cash Flows (Topic 230). Restricted Cash. The new accounting guidance
in ASU 2016-18 requires balances generally described as restricted cash or restricted cash
equivalents to be mcluded with cash and cash equivalents when reconciling beginning and end of
the period balances on the statement of cash tlows. This change was applied retrospectively to all
periods presented which resulted in the following changes within the statement of cash flows:

December 31, 2017

As Previously Adoption
Reported As Adjusted Impact
Change in secunty deposits 5 - 5 (70,370} b3 (70270
Setcash provided by operatmg activities 3A27472 15,474,992 11,847,526
Change in assels Timiled as 1o use 1,128,391 (1, 10,300} {7.2HE B )
Met cash provided (used) by wvesting activities 3.088,623 (2,200, 268) {7, 288.891)
Change in cash, cash eguivalents restricted cash
and eestricted cash equivalents 478,341 {F ERO, 920 {7339.261)
Cash, cash gquivalents, resincted cash and restricted
cash equivalents, beginning of vear 208 50 26121445 27072642
Cash, cash cquivalents, restneted cash and restncted
cash equivalents, end of vear 2527144 22440 525 19,713,351

Note 3: Resident and Patient Services

Resident service revenue is the amount that reflects the consideration to which AHCCRC, Inc,
expects to be entitled to in exchange {or standing ready to provide services to the life care
residents. The entrance fee is comprised of refundable and nonretundable amounts based upon the
established contract. The non-refundable portion of the entrance payment is recogmized straight
line over the expected life of the resident(s). which is when the performance obligations arc
satisfied. The monthly service fees are billed monthly and are recognized as performance

obligations are satisfied.

15
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MNotes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2018 and 2017

Patient care service revenue is reported at the amount that reflects the consideration to which
ATICCRC, Inc. expects to be entitled to in exchange for providing patient care. These amounts are
due from patients, third-party payors (including health insurers and governments programs) and
others and includes variable consideration for potential retroactive revenue adjustments due to
settlement of audits, reviews and investigations. Generally, AIICCRC, Inc. bills the patients and
third-party payors for the length of stay as per the patients” health plan. Patient accounts receivable
are due in full when billed. Revenue is recogmized as performanece obligations are satistied.

Performance Obligations

Performance obligations are determined based on the nature of the services provided by AHCCRC,
Inc. Revenue for performance obligations satisficd over time is recognized based on actual charges
incurred in relation to total expected or actual charges. AHCCRC, Inc. believes that this method
provides a taithful depiction of the wransfer of services over the term of the performance obligation
based on the inputs needed to satisfy the obligation. AITCCRC, Inc. measures performance
abligations for resident service revenue from admission to the health center to the point when it is
no longer required to provide services to that resident. which is generally at the time of discharge.
AHCCRC, Ine, measures performance obligations for resident service revenue and resident fees
revenue as a series of distinet services that are considered one performance obligation which is
satisfied over time,

Transaction Price

AHCCRC, Inc, determines the transaction price based on standard charges for goods and services
provided, reduced by explicit price concessions which consist of contractual adjustments provided
to third-party payors. AHCCRC, Inc. determines its estimates ol contractual adjustments and
discounts based on contractual agreements, its discount policies and historical experience.
AHCCRC, Inc. determines its estimate of implicit price concessions based on its historical
collection experience with this class of residents.

Third-Party Payors

Agreements with third-party payors typically provide tor payments at amounts less than established
charges. A summary of the payment arrangements with major third-party payors follows:

Medicare: Services rendered to Medicare program beneficiaries for skilled nursing are
reimbursed under a prospective methodology and no additional settlernent will be made on the
difference between the per diem rates paid and actual cost.

Medicaid: Commencing January 2012, nursing facility rates are based on statewide price,
utilizing the 2007 RHCF cost report data, adjusted facility-specific and regional labor factors,
as well as facility specific Medicaid case mix. The facility-specific case mix at July 1, 2017
was ulilized Tor the January 1, 2018 through June 30, 2018 rates. The facility-specific case
mix at January 1, 2018 was utilized for the July 1. 2018 through December 31, 2018 rates.

Other: Payment agreements with certain commercial insurance carriers and health
maintenance organizations provide for payment using prospectively determined rates per day.

16
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Motes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2018 and 2017

Laws and regulations concerning government programs, including Medicare and Medicaid, are
complex and subject to varying interpretation and review of submitted cost reports, As a result of
mvestigations by governmental agencies, various health care organizations have received requests
tor information and notices regarding alleged noncompliance with those laws and regulations,
which, in some instances, have resulted in organizations entering into significant scttlement
agreements. Management believes that any potential adjustments would be immaterial,
Compliance with such laws and regulations may also be subject to future government review and
interpretation, as well as significant regulatory action, including fines, penalties and potential
exclusion from the related programs. There can be no assurance that regulatory authorities will not
challenge AHCCRC, Inc.’s compliance with these laws and regulations. and it is not possible to
determine the impact {if any) such claims or penalties would have upon AHCCRC, Ine. In
addition, the contracts AHCCRC, Inc. has with commercial payors also provide for retroactive
audit and review of claims.

Patient Payors

Generally, residents who are covered by third-party payors are responsible for related deductibles
and coinsurance, which vary in amount, AHCCRC, Inc. bills the residents for all known
deductibles and coinsurance and is part of the overall transaction price. Certain fees related to
skilled nursing care arc reduced for implicit price concessions.

Revenue Composition

AHCCRC, Inc. has determined that the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash
flows are aftected by the following factors;

s [ayors (for example, Medicare or other insurance, patient) have ditferent reimbursement
and payment methodologies

*  AHCCRC, Inc.’s line of business that provided the service (for example, nursing home
inpatient, outpatient rehabilitation, independent living and assisted living, ete.)

o Substantially. all revenues are recognized over time

17
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MNotes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2018 and 2017

The composition of resident and clicnt fee revenue by primary payor and service line for the year
ended December 31, 2018 is as follows:

Assisted
Living and
Independent Memory Skilled
Living Support Mursing
{Monthly) {Monthly) {Per Diem) Total

Medicare 5 - b - 5 3,622,744 b 3,622 744
Medicaid - - 464 530 469,539
HMO - - 105,443 1045448
Hospice - = TG 7116
Poivate 13,113,049 2,380,524 1,223 K82 16,717,560

5 13,113,049 5 2,350,525 5 3797729 21291707

Revenue from patient deductibles and comsurance are included in the categories presented above
based on the primary payor.

For the year ended December 31, 2017, resident and patient revenues. net of contraciual allowances
and discounts, include third-party payors of $4,630,471 and self-pay of $17,008.133.

Financing Component

AHCCRC, Inc. has refundable and nonrefundable components of its entrance [ees. However, there
is no financing component involved for its residential or health care services. For other revenues
AHCCRC, Inc. has elected the practical ¢xpedient allowed under FASB ASC 606-10-32-18 and
does not adjust the promised amount of consideration from customers and third-party payors for
the effeets of a significant financing component due to AIICCRC, Ine.’s expectation that the period
between the time the service 1s provided o a customer and the time that the customer or a third-
party payor pays for that service will be one year or less,

Contract Costs

AHCCRC, Inc. has applied the practical expedient provided by FASB ASC 340-40-25-4 and all
incremental customer contract acquisition costs are expensed as they are incurred, as the
amortization period of the asset that AHCCRC, Ine. atherwise would have recognized is one year
or less in duration. However, incremental costs incurred to obtain customer contracts for which the
amortization period of the asset that AHCCRC, Inc. atherwise would have recognized is longer
than one year are capitalized and amortized over the life of the contract based on the pattern of
revenue recognition from these contracts. AHCCRC, Ine. regularly evaluates ils cuslomer contract
costs and considers whether they should be capitalized over the life of the contract, These amounts
are not considered to be significant to the overall financial statements and are expensed as incurred
since they have a minimal effect on operations.

i
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Notes to Financial Statements
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Note 4: Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. Fair value measurements must maxinuze the use of
observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. There is a hierarchy of three levels
of inputs that may be used to measure fair value:

Level 1 Quoted prices in active markets tor identical assets

Level 2 Observable inputs other than Level | prices, such as quoted prices for similar
assets; quoted prices in markets that are not active; or other inputs thal are
observable or can be corroborated by observable market data for substantially the
tull term of the assets

Level 3 Unobservable inputs supported by little or no market activity and are significant to
the fair value of the assets

Recurring Measurements

The Tollowing table presents the Far value measurements of assets recognized in the accompanying
balance sheet measured at fair value on o recurring basis and the level within the Fair value
hierarchy in which the fair value measurements fall at December 31, 2018 and 2017;

Fair Value Measurements Using
Quoted Prices Significant

I Active Other Significant
Markets for Observable Unchservable
ldentical Assets Inputs Inputs
Fair Value [Lewval 1) {Level 2} (Levwal 3}

218
Cerificates of depasit 3 7725807 5 - 5 TT25R07 5 -
Municipal bonds 544 268 - 544 Tk -
Covemment bonds 2U5036 . 0= 056 -
Corporate bonds 24717 - 24777 -
5 K SR9908 5 - 5 B5R9AE 5 -

017
Certilicates of deposit 5 T2R30N3 ] - 5 7263013 8 -

Municipal bonds 344,385 - 344 W5

Corporate bonds 424,522 - 424,522 -
5 8,231,920 ] - § 8231920 ] -

19
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Assets Limited as to Use

Where quoted market prices are available in an active market. securities are classified within

Level 1 of the valuation hierarchy. 1T quoted market prices are not available, then fair values are
estimated by using quoted prices of secunities with similar characteristics or independent asset
pricing services and pricing models, the inputs of which are market-based or independently sourced
market parameters, including, but not limited to, yield curves, interest rates, volatilities,
prepayments, defaults, cumulative loss projections and cash flows. Such sccurities are classified in
Level 2 of the valuation hierarchy. In certain cases where Level | or Level 2 inputs are not
available, sccurities are classified within Level 3 of the hierarchy. There are no Level 3 securitics
at December 31, 2018 and 2017,

Note 5: Accounts Receivable

The mix of receivables for the vears ended December 31 are;

Accounts receivable congsist of the following for the years ended December 31:

2018 2017
Mhedicare T 42%
Medicaid 34 6%
Co-insurance A% 7%
Hespice ™ 9%
Provate and other 26% 16
100%, 100
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Note 6;: Entrance Fees

AHNCCRC, Inc, recognizes revenue for resident services in the period earned, which mcludes
amortization of the nonrefundable portion of entrance fees. Entrance fees are paid by residential
unit residents as they take occupancy of their reserved units. Of this entrance fee, a portion is
nonrefundable and is recorded as a contract liability and amortized over the estimated remaining
life expectancy of the resident. The remaining life expectancy is re-evaluated annually and
amortization periods are adjusted accordingly. Nonrefundable entrance fees were $26,808,413 and
$26,594,491 at December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively. The remaining portion of the entrance
fee is refundable to the resident (or appointed estate) upon vacancy from AHCCRC, Inc. or
expiration of the resident, This portion of the entrance fee will be refunded upon the earlier of one
year after termination of the agreement or once the vacated unit has been occupied by another
resident. Pending refunds due for units reoccupied at December 31, 2018 and 2017 were

$2,848 614 and $1,174,665, respectively, Additionally, refunds due within 12 months at
December 31, 2018 and 2017 were $1,959,131 and $5,091,262, respectively, These refunds due
within 12 months will be funded from entrance receipts when the vacated unit is rcoccupied or
from operations if the unit has not yet been reoccupied within one year ol termination. Retundable
entrance fees not yet due back to residents at December 31, 2018 and 2017 were $153 464,111 and
$148,592,569, respectively, AHCCRC, Inc. offers multiple contract options to residents with
varying entrance fee refundability levels. Pursuant to Article 46 of the New York Public [lealth
Law, any resident terminating the agreement within the first 90 days of oceupancy receives a 100
percent refund of the entrance fee paid. Entrance fees that arc due but not yet paid as of year-end
are recorded as entrance fees receivable. Entrance fees receivable as of December 31, 2018 and
2017 were $1,508,939 and $0, respectively. Promissory notes are accepted by AHCCRC, Inc. for
unpaid balances. The notes are interest-free for the first three months in 2018 and the first six
months in 2017 and then acerue at the greater of 6 percent or the prime rate plus 2 percent, which
was 7.50 percent and 6.50 percent at December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively. The notes are due
twelve months after issuance but can be extended if needed.

Entrance fees received in cash, net of refunds, other than initial entrance fees for the years ended
December 31, 2018 and 2017 were $5,417.402 and 511,377,592, respectively.

Note 7: Conversion and Wait List Deposits Refundable

Conversion deposits refundable represent deposits made by potential residents based on ten percent
of the value of the residential unit. Wait list deposits represent deposits made to provide a potential
resident priority for reserving an independent living unit that is currently sold-out. Prior 1o
occupancy in the Community, these deposits are fully refundable, with interest accruing to the
depositors. They have been segregated in an interest-bearing escrow account on behalf of each
potential resident. There was $345,893 and $425.957 of conversion and wait list deposits
refundable as of December 31, 2618 and 2017, respectively.
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Note 8: Assets Limited As To Use

Assets limited as to use consist oft

2018 2017
Current portion
Revenue fund b 2031,054 b 1,300,027
Entrance fee fund* 3.108,173 3hd e
Operating reserve fung 3771097 10,732,320
Redemption fund 773 1445402
Interest and principal payment account 6,707,623 5055970
Conversion and wait list deposits 350,041 426,283
Assets limited as to use - cuwrrent portion 16,035,303 19 320 00
MNoncurrent porlion
Debl service reserve funds B0, 300 B.508 985
Assels lnmited as to use, total § 24638663 5 2T RAROR1
2018 2017
Cush b3 3,737,794 5 fHias, 330
Money markets 12,310,961 18,936,801
Certificates of deposil 7,725,807 7,263,013
Municipal bonds 544,268 544,385
Covernment bonds 245,154 L
Corporate bonds 24777 424 522
Total b 24638663 S TR

The funds maintained by the trustee have been established in accordance with the debt indenture
agreement to provide for specific costs of the project interest costs on the honds, and to cover cash
flow shortfalls,

* Balance includes cash of $68,267 as of December 31, 2018 and $243,048 as of December 31,
2007, which will be wansterred to the entrance fee fund account,
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Note 9: Property and Equipment

Property and equipment at December 31, 2018 and 2017 consist of the following:

Estimated
2018 2017 Useful Lives
Land £ 22353895 § 22353893
Land improvements BG19,780D B.619.780 20 years
Building and improvements 221,480,007 221,162 306 540 years
Vehiclas 230,967 230967 Fvears
Fquipment 2457562 2,245 8017 10-15 years
Furniture and fixures 3,186,157 3183512 1 vears
Computer equipmment and soliware 564642 557,883 3 vears
Construction in progness 157,818 144,872
250,050, 828 255499022

Less accumulated deprecialion
and amortization [34.0M5 (138) (47 373630

S 204,955,790 $ 211.125392

Note 10: Long-Term Debt

On December 20, 2007, Nassau County Industrial Development Agency issued $296,395 000
Series 2007 A through 20070 fixed, adjustable and variable rate revenue bonds on hehalf of
AHCCRC, Inc.

In November 2014, 75 percent of the outstanding Series 2007 Bonds were exchanged for the Seres
2014A and 20148 Bonds and 25 percent of the outstanding Series 2007 Bonds were exchanged for
the Series 2014C Bonds,

The Series 2014A Bonds bear interest at rates from 5.875 percent to 6.700 percent depending om
the maturity, with 4 final maturity date of January 1, 2049, Interest is payable sermiannually on
each January | and July | commencing January 1, 2015, The 20014A Bonds shall be subject 1o
mandatory sinking fund redemptions annually beginning on January 1, 2019

523,842 500 of the Series 2014B bonds bear interest at 5.500 percent per annum with a final
maturity date of July 1, 2020, Interest is payable semiannually on each January | and July 1
commencing January 1, 2015, The 2014B Bonds shall be subject to mandatory redemption on the
[irst business day of each January, April, July and October from available Entrance Fees,
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$59,537,660 of the 2014C Bonds bear interest at a rate of 2.000 percent per annum.  Interest shall
be payable semiannually on each January 1 and July 1, but only from Excess Cash available as
defined in the bond document, [T the Excess Cash is not sufficient to pay interest, the unpaid
interest shall be added to the principal amount of the 2014C Bonds. The unpaid interest and
principal outstanding on the 2014C Bonds as of December 31, 2018 and 2017 was 564,642,676 and
563,368,960, respectively. The 2014C Bonds are subject to mandatory redemption if there is
Excess Cash.

The following is a summary of long-term debt al December 31, 2018 and 2017:

Nassau County Industrial Development Agency Continuing Care Retirement Community Revenue
Bonds (Amsterdam at Harborside Project):

2018 2017
Senes 20144 Fixed Rate Revenue Bonds
« 5875 percent, due January 1, 2023 b3 6,255,000 5 6255000
¢ 0300 percent, due Tanuary 1, 2032 21,123.750 21,123,750
e 0300 percent, due January 1, 2034 (5,375,000 6,375,000
e 06,700 percent, due Tanuary 1, 2049 93,910,000 03,910,000
e 6,700 percent, due January 1, 2049 11,921,250 11,921,250
o 3300 percent, due July 1, 2020 6104613 7,550,315
Seres 20140 Excess Cash Flow Revenue Bonds
o 2000 percent, duc January 1, 2049 537,660 39,537,660
Total principal 207227573 208,672,975
Accmed interest payable on the Seres 20140 Bonds 3105006 3,831,300
Debl ssuance cosls {480 007 {5,112.225)
Total long-temdebl and acerued mienest S 207438582 5 207392050

Anticipated principal payments are as follows;

2009 b 1,542 458
2020 7,739,010
2021 1,731,187
2022 [ 534,033
201213 1,043 043
Therealter 197,342,836

§ 212,332,589
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AHCCRC, Inc. ncurred 53,840,857 of bond issuance costs in connection with the bonds closing.
At December 31, 2015 and 2017, unamortized bond issuance costs based on an effective interest
rate of 0.1 1% were 54,894,007 and £5,112,225, respectively.

Interest expense tor the year ended Decemnber 31, 2018 was 511,207,403, which includes 5218218
of amortization of debt issuance costs,

Interest expense tor the year ended December 31, 2017 was 511,472,109, which includes 5222 812
of amortization of debt issuance costs,

On January 22, 2020, at the direction of the holders of a majority of the principal amount of the
Bonds, pursuant to a Waiver Agreement, UMB Bank, N.A. {as Trustee) waived the Event of
Defaults resulting from the failure of AHCCRC, Inc. to (i) maintain a Debt Service Coverage Ratio
of at least | times for the vear ended December 31, 2018, (ii) meet its Liquidity Covenant for the
two consecutive testing periods of December 31, 2018 and June 30, 2019 and (iii) maintain at least
| 30 Days Cash on Hand,

In addition, on January 22, 2020, the [nstallment Sale Agreement with Nassau County Industrial
Agency was amended 1o (i) reduce the Liguidity Covenant’s Days Cash on Hand requirement to
(a) 45 Days Cash on Hand at December 31, 2019, March 31,2020 and Junc 30, 2020, (b) 65 Days
Cash on Hand at September 30, 2020, (c) 90 Days Cash on Hand at December 31, 2020 and

(d} 130 Days Cash on Hand for each quarter thereafter; and (i1) confirm the requirement of
AHCCRC, Ine. to set aside one-twelfth (1/12) of the principal on the Series 2014A Bonds, coming
duc on the next succeeding January | and commencing July 1, 2019, one-twelfth (1/12) of the
principal on the Series 20148 Bonds coming due on July 1, 2020,

Note 11: Subvention Certificate to Amsterdam Continuing Care Health System,
Inc.

There is a $3,000,000 subvention certificate between the Health System and AHCCRC, Inc. which
was partially financed by a subvention of $2.267.600 from Amsterdam Nursing Home Corporation
(1992) and $657,800 from the Health System. This was [ully reserved by both Amsterdam Nursing
Home Corporation (1992) and the Health System in 2010, Pursuant to the terms of the Subvention
Certificate, interest accrues on the outstanding balance at a rate of prime plus 300 basis points
annually., The rate at December 31, 2018 and 2017 was 8,50 percent and 7.50 percent,
respectively. Interest expense on the subvention for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017
was $237,813 and 5213.750, respectively, As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, 53,342,404 and
3,104,592, respectively, of simple interest has been acerued to record interest since inception,
which meludes capitalized interest of $1,694,592,
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MNote 12: Functional Expenses

Expenses are functionalized as follows:

2018
Program
Services - Supporting
Resident Care Services Total
Salaries and wages b & 578,137 % 623,935 5 5,206,092
Payroll taxes and emplovee henefits 1625476 221,010 846,456
Contracted services A, B06, 600 20004970 TRITET0
Supplies and other 5,326,610 561,235 5,897,845
Interest 11,207 248 237813 11,445,111
Deepreciation and amoer isation 6,732,630 1,016,94) 7,749 580
Total expenses 5 3533761 5 4,673,421 £ 40,000,654

Note 13: Pension

AHCCRC, Inc. has a defined contribution plan covering substantially all full time employees after
two vears of service. Pension expense was $123,570 and $101,271 for the years ended
December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively.

Note 14: Commitments and Contingencies

Administrative Services Agreement

AHCCRC, Inc, entered into an administrative services agreement with Amsterdam Services Corp,
{ASC), an aftiliate of AHCCRC, Inc., dated March 31, 2004, On July 14, 2008, the contrict wis
assigned to Amsterdam Consulting, LLC (LLC). The terms of the contract did not change.
Pursuant 1o the administrative services agreement, LLC will (i) furnish advisory and consulting
services with respect to the skilled nursing center; (i) provide financial services in connection with
the day-to-dav management and administration of the accounting and finance department; and (111)
issue progress reports to AHCCRC, Inc. as the Board of Directors may direct, LLC will be
responsible for the cost of the personnel who supply adminisirative and fiscal advisory and
consulting services to AHCCRC, Ine,

The commencement date of the contract was March 1, 2000 for an initial period of five years. In

October 2015, AHCCRC, Ine, and LLC entered into a second amendment to the agreement
revising the terms to be automatically renewed for successive one-vear terms,
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For services performed under this agreement, administrative services fees of $323,733 and
$438,474 is included in management fees for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017,
respectively. The annual administrative services fee may increase annually by an amount not to
exceed the increase in the Consumer Price Index for All Urban Consumers (medical care index).

Financial Services Advisory Agreement

AHCCRC, Ine, entered into a financial services advisory agreement with Greystone Management
Services Company, LLC (GMSC) effective September 1, 2014 for a period of sixty months. Under
the agreement, GMSC will advise AHCCRC, Inc. in the financial management of the Comnunity.
As compensation for services rendered pursuant to the financial services advisory agreement,
AHCCRC, Ine. will pay a monthly fee of $20,000 per month. Effective April 1, 2017 through the
remaining term of the agreement, the monthly fee was reduced to $17,500, On cach anniversary of
the original effective date, the fee shall be adjusted for inflation by a percentage amount equivalent
to the New York State trend factor. There shall be no downward adjustments in the fee based on
this calculation. GMSC will be reimbursed for reasonable travel and out-of-pocket costs in
connection with the performance of its duties under the agreement and also overhead expenses
cqual to 3.5 percent of the services fee. GMSC as financial services advisor shall act as an
independent contractor in the performance of its obligations under the agreement. Financial
services fees of 221,117 and $227,151 are included in management fees for the years ended
December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively.

Marketing Advisory Services Agreement

AHCCRC, Inc. entered into a marketing advisory services agreement with GCD New York, LLC
(GCD), an affiliate of GMSC, in November 2014. GCD is responsible tor developing and
implementing a marketing plan and marketing the independent living units. Services began in
October 2015 when oceupancy of the independent living units first achieved 90 percent and end
August 31, 2019, Pursuant to the agreement, GCD is paid a services fee of S10,000) upon
occupancy of each independent living unit. Effective April 1, 2017 the terms of the agreement
were amended and GCD is now paid $9,000 upon occupancy of each independent living unit.
GCD charges an administrative fee of 3.5 percent of total fees and is also reimbursed for
reimbursable expenses. Services fees of $251,505 and $168,705 are included in management fees
for the vears ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively.

General Litigation

AHCCRC, Inc. may be subject to claims and lawsuits that arise primarily in the ordinary course of
its activities. AHCCRC, Inc. evaluates such allegations by conducting investigations to determine
the validity ot each potential claim. Tt is the opinion of management the disposition or ultimate
resolution of any claims and lawsuits will not have a material adverse effect on the balance sheets.
change in net assets and cash Nows of AHCCRC, Ine. Events could occur that would change this
estimate materially in the near term.
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Note 15: Liquidity and Availability

Financial asscts available for general expenditure, that is, without donor or other restrictions
limiting their use, within one year of December 31, 2018 and 2017, compnise the following:

2018 2017
Financial assels at vear end
Cash and cash equivalents 5 1,625,122 b 2,527 144
Accounts receivable G03,111 T0E, 740
Intrance fees receivable 1,805 930 -
Assets limited as to use

Revenue fund 2031054 1,301,027

Operating reserve fund 3,771,087 10,732 320

Financial assets available to meet general

expenditures within one year S 10,142,323 15269237

ANCCRC, Inc, manages its liquidity and reserves following three guiding principles: operating
within a prudent range of financial soundness and stability, maintaining adequate liquid assets to

tund near-term operating needs and maintaining sufficient reserves to provide reasonable assurance

that long-term obligations will be discharged. To achieve these targets, AHCCRC, Inc. forecasts
its future cash flows and monitors its liquidity menthly, and monitors its reserves annually.

Mote 16: Financial Status

The change in net assets without donor restrictions for the year in the accompanying financial

statements for AHCCRC, Inc. reflects a loss from operations in addition to a cumulative net assets

defieit,
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The financial statements are prepared on the accrual basis in accordance with GAAP. AHCCRC,
Inc., operates on the basis of cash intflows and outflows as defined in the 2014 Bond documents.
The 2014 Bond documents allow for certain liquidity provisions. During each menth, all cash
receipts (other than entrance fees) are transferred to the Trustee-held Revenue fund. On the first
business day of each month, the amounts in the Revenue fund are transferred by the Trustee in the
following order of priority {Distribution Waterfall): 1) to the Operating account to fund up to 45
days’ cash, 2) to the Series A and Series B Debt service accounts to pay 1/6 of the interest on the
Series A and B Bonds, 3) to the Series A and Series B Debt service accounts to pay 1/12 principal
(if applicable) on the Series A or B Bonds, 4) to the Operating reserve to replenish up to 130 days
cash on hand, 5) to the Debt service reserve fund to replenish up to required levels, and 6) any
remaining amounts shall be transferred as follows until the Operating account is funded up to 250
days’ cash on hand: (i) 50 percent to the Operating account and (ii) 50 percent to the Series C Debt
service account or the Series C Redemption account 1o pay Series C accrued interest and principal.
Once the Operating account has been funded up to 250 days’ cash on hand, 100 percent of the
excess cash is transferred to the Series C Debt service account or the Series C Redemption account
to pay Serics C accrued interest and principal.

Additionally, while any Series B Bonds are outstanding, all entrance fees received are transferred
to the Trustee-held Entrance fee fund during the month. On the first business day of cach month,
the funds in the Entrance fee fund are applied as follows: 1) to pay refunds owed, 2) to fund the
operating account and Operating reserve up to 175 days, and 3) 1o redeem Series B Bonds. After
the Series B Bonds have been redecmed, the entrance fees are transferred to the Revenue fund.

Munagement has evaluated the projected cash requirements for the next year as well as the next
three years. Based on budgeted cash flows, management believes AHCCRC, Inc. has the ahility to
meet its financial obligations through operating cash flow for a period of well in excess of one year
from the date the financial statements are issucd,
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Short Environmental Assessment Form
Part 1 - Project Information

Instructions for Completing

Part 1 - Project Information. The applicant or project sponsor is responsible for the completion of Part 1, Responses become part of the
application for approval or funding, are subject Lo public review, and may be subject (o further verification. Complete Part 1 based on
mformation currently available. If additional research or investigation would be needed to fully respond to any item, please answer as
thoroughly as possible based on current information.

Complete all tems in Part L. You may also provide any addittonal information which you betieve wilt be needed by or usefut w the
lead agency; attach additional pages as necessary to supplement any iter.

Part 1 — Project and Sponsor Information

Amsterdam Housa Continuing Care Retirement Community, Ihe.

Mame of Action or Project;
Band Restruciuring

T‘l'nject_i.ocarinn (describe, and attach a location map):
{300 E. Overlook Driva, Port Washington, NY 11050

| Brief Description of Proposed Action:
Restructuring of 2014 bonds issued by Massau County 1DA

Name of Applicant or Sponsor: Telephone: 212 3167711

Amsterdam House Continuing Care Retirement Community. Ine.

E-Mail: jdavis@amsterdamnh.org

Address:
300 E. Owverlook Drive
City/POx: State: Zip Code:
Port Washington Mew Yark 11050
1. Does the proposed action only involve the legislative adoption of a plan, local law, ordinance, NO VES
administrative rule, or regulation?
If ¥es, attach a narrative descriplion of the intent of the proposed action and the envirenmental resources that D
may be affected in the municipality and proceed to Part 2. [ no, continue to question 2.
2. Duoes the proposed action require a permit, approval or funding from any other government Agency”? NO YES
[f¥es, list agency(s) name and permit or approval: Massau County IDA ’:I
| 3. a Total acreage of the site of the propoesed action? 8.9 acres
b. Total acreage to be physically disturbed? Oacres
. Tolal acreage (project site and any conliguous propertics) owned
or controlled by the applicant or project sponsor? 8.9 acres

4. Check all land uses that oceur on, are adjoining or near the proposed action:
[ Urban [ Rural (non-agriculturey [ Industrial [] Commercial Residential (suburban)
D Forest [ Agricullure D Aquatic ] OtherSpecifv):
Parkland

Page | of 3 SEAF 2018



(5. Tsthe proposed action, | NO

4. A permitted usc under the zoning regulations? ‘ D
k. Consistent with the adopted comprihensive plan? l:’
1

6. Is the proposed action consistent with the predominant character of the existing built or natural landscape?

7. Is the sitc of the proposed action located in, or does it adjoin, a state listed Critical Environmental Area?

If the proposed action will exceed requirements, describe design features and technologies:

nfa - restructuring of existing dett

YES

IfYes, identify: D

: . : . : YES

8 a. Will the proposed action result in a substantial mecrease in traffic above present levels? D
b. Are public transportation services available at or near the site of the proposed action? D‘

€. Are any pedesirian accommodations or bicyele routes available on or near the site of the proposed |:I
aclion? |

% Dwes the proposed action meet or cxceed the state encrey code requirements? YES

which is listed on the National or State Register of Historic Places, or that has been determined by the
Commissioner of the NYS Office of Parks, Recreation and Histeric Preservation to be eligible for listing on the
State Register of Historic Places?

b. Is the project site, or any portion of it, located in or adjacent to an area designated as sensitive for

archaeological sites on the NY State Historic Preservation Office (SHPO) archaeological site inventory'?

10, Will the proposed action connect to an existing public/private water supply? NO | YES
If Mo, describe method for providing potable water: =
L]
L1 Will the proposed action connect to existing wastewater utilities? NO | YES |
[t No, describe method for providing wastewater treatment: -
L]
[ 12, a. Does the project sile contain, or is it substantially contiguous to, a building, archaeological site, or district YES

13 a. Does any portion of the site of the proposed action, or lands adjoming the proposed action, contain
wetlands or other waterbodies regulated by a federal, state or local agency?

b. Would the proposed action physically alter, or encroach into, any existing wetland or waterbody?

If Yos, idenuly the wetland or waterbody and extent of alterations in square feet or acres:

| YES

K]




Cshoreline [ Forest ] Agriculiuraligrasslands  [] Early mid-successianal
Cwetland [ Urban ] Suburhan

14, Identify the ty pical habitat types that occur on, or are likely to be found on the project site. Cheek all that apply:

16, Is the project site located in the 100-year flaod plan?

15, Dees the site of the proposed action contain any species uf:||11'|{:'a'1'i',m{':|r associated habitats, listed I:rgl' the State ar I_N(} YES
Federal government as threatened or endangered?
YES

]

17. Will the proposed action create storm water discharge, either from point or non-point sources?
If ¥es,

YES

a. Will storm water discharges flow to adjacent properties?

b, Wil storm water discharges be directed to established conveyance systems (FunofT and storm drains)?

OOz RE R

IF Yes, briefly describe:

18. Does the proposed action include construction or other activities that would result in the impoundment of water | NO | YES
or other liquids (e g., retention pond, waste lagoon, dam)?

I Yes, explain the purpose and size of the impoundment: [:[

19, Has the site of the proposed action or an adjoining prup{:nj"f:;een the location of an active or closed solid waste | NO | YES |

management facility?
If Yes, describe:

20.Has the site of the proposed action or an adjoining property been the subject of remediation {ongoing ar
completed) for hazardous wasle?
If Yes, describe; g i i ull

| YES

MY KNOWLEDGE

Carg Retirament Community, Inc Dhates: Jung 18, 2321

; . _— I
L CERTIFY THAT THE INFORMATION PROVIDED ABOVE IS TRUE AND ACCURATE TOQ THE BEST OF

Applican

Signature Title; President & CEQ

PRINT FORM Page 3 of 3




Schedule H
Attach most recent quarterly filing of Form NYS-45 and 45-ATT, as well as the most recent

fourth quarter filing. Please remove the employee social security numbers and note which
cmployees are parl-lime.



Form NYS 45 is redacted in its entirety
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Schedule |

NASSAU COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY
APPLICATION FOR FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE
(BONDS)

[Date: June 18, 2021
Applicant: Amsterdam House Continuing Care Retirement Community, Inc.

Background:

Amsterdam House Continuing Care Retirement Community, Inc. (“Applicant™) requests the
assistance of the Nassau County Industrial Development Agency in the form of issuance of two
series of bonds (respectively, the “2021A Bonds™ and the “2021B Bonds” and together, the
“2021 Bonds™) for the restructuring of the outstanding Nassau County Industrial Development
Agency Continuing Care Retirement Community Fixed Rate Revenue Bonds (Amsterdam at
Harborside Project), Series 2014A and Scries 2014B (respectively, the “2014A Bonds” and the
“2014B Bonds”) and the outstanding Nassau County Industrial Development Agency
Continuing Care Retirement Community Excess Cash Flow Revenue Bonds (Amsterdam at
Harborside Project), Series 2014C (the “2014C Bonds™ and with the 2014A and 2014B Bonds,
the “2014 Bonds™). The 2014 Bonds were issued by the Agency in 2014 for the benefit of
Applicant. The 2021A Bonds will be taxable and the 2021B Bonds will be tax-exempt.

The Agency issued the 2014 Bonds in order to restructure the Nassau County Industrial
Development Agency Continuing Care Retirement Community Revenue Bonds (Amsterdam at
Harborside Project), Series 2007A, Series 2007B and Series 2007C (collectively, the “2007
Bonds™).

Proceeds of the 2007 Bonds, together with other resources, were used to develop and construct a
continuing care retirement community in Port Washington, New York consisting of 229
independent living units, 44 enriched housing units and 56 skilled nursing beds. The continuing
care retirement community is licensed by the New York State Department of Health under
Article 46 of the New York Public Health Law.

After opening in 2010, Applicant struggled to overcome the economic downturn and the
associated turmoil in the real estate market that resulted from the financial crisis and recession of’
2008, which hindered the financial success of Applicant’s facility. As a result, Applicant and the
majority holders of the outstanding 2007 Bonds reached an agreement to restructure Applicant’s
debt through an exchange of the 2007 Bonds for the 2014 Bonds. This was done following a
voluntary bankruptcy commenced by Applicant on July 22, 2014. In accordance with the plan of
reorganization approved by the United States Bankruptcy Court for the Eastern District of New
York (the “Bankruptey Court™), the Agency issued the 2014 Bonds on November 13, 2014 in
exchange for the 2007 Bonds. which were then canceled.




Applicant has continued to struggle financially, and on April 2020 in the midst of the COVID-19
pandemic, Applicant ceased making monthly payments required under the bond documents for
the 2014 Bonds. After extensive negotiations with the majority bondholders, the New York State
Department of Health and the New York State Department of Financial Services, Applicant and
the majority holders of the outstanding 2014 Bonds have reached an agreement to restructure
Applicant’s debt through an exchange of the outstanding 2014A and 2014B Bonds for 2021R
Bonds. In order to accomplish this, and to mect other financial obligations, Applicant
commenced a new voluntary bankruptcy proceeding in the Bankruptey Court on June 14, 2021
(Case No. 21-71095 (AST)). Hon. Alan S. Trust is presiding over the case.

The deht restructuring plan contemplates that, on the effective date, the holders of the Series
2014A and 2014B Bonds will surrender their bonds (in the current aggregate principal amount of
$139,917,130) for a pro rata amount of the new Serics 20218 Bonds in a principal amount of
$127.327,200. The Series 2014C Bonds will be cancelled in whole without any payment or
consideration.

The restructuring plan further contemplates the issuance by the Agency of 2021 A Bonds in the
principal amount of $40,710,000. The proceeds of the 2021 A Bonds will be loaned to Applicant
to provide funds to (i) pay refunds of entrance fees pursuant to Residency Agreements and
applicable New York State law, (ii) fund, together with amounts now held by the trustee for the
2014 Bonds, a debt service reserve fund for the 2021 Bonds, and (ii1) provide liquidity.

As part of the restructuring plan, Amsterdam Continuing Care Health System, Ine. ( “System™),
the sole corporate member of Applicant, has agreed to contribute $9.0 million to Applicant on
the date of the issuance of the 2021 Bonds, subject to required approvals. System has also
agreed to provide $9.0 million in liquidity support to Applicant under certain conditions agreed
to with the majority holders of the 2014 Bonds. This, too. is subject to required approvals.

Benelits;

Applicant requests financial assistance in the form of taxable and tax-cxempt financing and
mortgage recording tax exemption (to the extent Applicant is not exempt in its own right). With
respect to real estate taxes, the Agency and Applicant are party to a Payment In Lieu of Taxes
Agreement, dated as of December 1, 2007, as amended by the First Amendment to Payment In
Licu of Taxes Agreement, dated as of June 1. 2014 (the “PILOT Agrcement”) and the
Applicant requests that the Agency allow the continuation of the benefits under that PILOT
Agreement without any recapture. The Applicant is exempt from NY State sales tax.




Part I: D: Principal stockholders, members or partners, if any

System, a New York not-for-profit corporation, is the sole member of the Applicant with the
power to clect the board of directors of the Applicant.  However, System does not have the
authority to own and operate the continuing care retirement community, licensed under Article
46 of the Public Health Law, which is owned and operated by Applicant.

Part I: E: Other Entities Related by Virtue of 50%, Interest

Applicant is a New York not-for-profit corporation incorporated on January 30, 2004, The sole
member of Applicant is System. Applicant and System have board members in common,

Amsterdam Nursing Home Corporation (1992) (“ANH"), a New York not-for-profit corporation
which owns and operates a 409-bed skilled nursing facility in upper Manhattan. Applicant and
ANH have board members in common.

Amsterdam  Services Corp. (“Services Corp”). a New York nol-for-profit corporation
mcorporated on July 12, 1996 and an affiliate of Applicant, provides administrative services to
Applicant pursuant to an Administrative Services Agreement dated March 31, 2004 which was
assigned on July 14, 2008 to Amsterdam Consulting, LLC (“Consulting Corp™), a New York
limited liability company oreanized on July 14, 2008. Applicant and Services Corp have board
members in common. System is the member of Consulting Corp,

Amsterdam Services Corp. (2001) (“ASC 20017) is a New York business corporation
incorporated on July 20, 2001, The shares of ASC 2001 are owned by System.

Amsterdam 2012, Inc. (“Amsterdam_2012") is a New York not-for-profit corporation
incorporated on July 13, 2012. Applicant and Amsterdam 2012 have board members in
common,

Part I: F: Applicant Related to other entity by reason of 50% Common Ownership

See response to Part I: E above

Part I: G: List Parent corporation, sister corporations and subsidiaries

Sce response to Part I: E above

Pari l: H: Prior Indusiriai Development Financing

Nassau County Industrial Development Agency Continuing Care Retirement Community
Revenue Bonds (Amsterdam at [Harborside Project} consisting of:

Continuing Care Retirement Community Fixed Rate Revenue Bonds (Amsterdam at
Harborside Project) Series 2007A



MNassau

Continuing Care Retirement Community Adjustable Rate Revenue Bonds (Amsterdam at
Harborside Project) Serics 2007B

Continuing Care Retirement Community Variable Rate Demand Revenue Bonds
(Amsterdam at Harborside Project) Series 2007C

Continuing Care Retirement Community Taxable Variable Rate Demand Revenue Bonds
{Amsterdam at Harborside Project) Series 2007D

County Industrial Development Agency:

Continuing Care Retirement Community Fixed Rate Revenue Bonds (Amsterdam at
Harborside Project) Series 2014A

Continuing Care Retirement Community Fixed Rate Revenue Bonds (Amsterdam at
Harborside Project) Series 2014B

Continuing Care Retirement Community Excess Cash Flow Revenue Bonds (Amsterdam
at Harborside Project) Series 2014C

Part I: O: Information on Officers and Directors of Applicant

Name Title Other Business Affiliation

The Reverend Canon James  Director Gieneral Seerctary, Colleges and

G. Callaway, DD Universities of the Anglican Communion

James J. Campbell Dhirector

Isabel M. Carden, MBE Director Retired

Svylvia Dunsky Director Resident of Applicant

E. Scott Edmonds Dircctor Ermmet, Marvin & Martin

Rhoda Finer Director Resident of Applicant

Jaseph C. Hoopes, Ir, Director, Chairman Hoopes Management Co.

Karen M. Hopkins, M.TD. Director Clinical Associate Professor of Pediatrics,
NYU Langone Medical Center

Jay IT. McDowell, Esqg. irector, Secretary Withers Bergman, LLP

Frances R. Olivieri Direetor, ¥, Chairman

George L. Van Amson [rector, V. Chairman Morgan Stanley, Institutional Equity
Division

Langdon Van Norden Director GreensLedge Capital Markets, LLC

James Davis President & CEQ ANH, Amsterdam 2012, System. Services
Corp, ASC 2001, Consultng Corp

Mark Pancirer Sr. V. President & CFO ANH, Amsterdam 2012, System, Services

Corp, ASC 2001, Censulting Corp

James Davis 1s an appointed member of the New York State Continuing Care Retirement
Community Council.



Part 1: R: Contractual relationship with Agency or County

As part of the 2014 financing, the Applicant and Agency are parlies to an Installment Sale
Agreement and other financing related documents.

Part I: 1: Any Entity Proposed to be a User of the Project

There arc two (2) space leases currently in effect.  Classic Hair Care, L.L.C. leases
approximately 300 SF for beauty parlor services. Theradynamics Physical Therapy
Rehabilitation, P.C. leases approximately 150 SF for physical therapy/rehab services. The nature
of these relationships is lessor-lessee.

Part I1: C: Briefly explain why Project is Necessary
See Background above,

Part 11: E.: Impact of No Apency Assistance

Restructuring of the existing debt of the Applicant is essential to its ability to continue to serve
its charitable mission. In the absence of Agency financing, the restructuring plan proposed to the
Bankruptey Court and endorsed by a majority of the existing bondholders would likely fail.

Part I1: H(a): Current Real Estate Taxes

Currently, Applicant and the Agency are parties to a PILOT Agreement dated December 1, 2007
and amended June 1, 2014. The obligations of the Applicant under the PILOT Agreement are
secured by a mortgage. The Applicant seeks the continuation of the benefits under the existing
PILOT Agreement, without Agency enforcement of recapture rights, it any.

Part 11: 1: Project Site Ownership Structure

Legal title to the Project site is held by the Agency, subject to an Installment Sale Agreement
with the Applicant dated as of November 1, 2014,

Part I1: K: Project space leased to or occupied by third parties

There are two (2) space leases currently in effect.  Classic Hair Care, L.L.C. leases
approximately 300 SF for beauty parlor services. Theradynamics Physical Therapy
Rehabilitation, P.C. leases approximately 150 SF for physical therapy/rehab services.

Part I1: L: Additional Information on Lessees of Space

No additional information is currently available to Applicant with respect to Classic Hair Care,
LiC,

Theradynamics Physical Therapy Rehabilitation P.C. is a New York Professional Corporation
incorporated on August 27, 1999,



Part I1: {}: Customer Visits

As noted above, there are two (2) entities which use space at Applicant’s facility: Classic Hair
Care, L.L.C., and Theradynamics Physical Therapy Rehabilitation, P.C. The services provided —
beauty parlor services, and physical therapy services, respectively — are primarily for the benefit
of the residents of Applicant. To our knowledge, there is no material use of their respective
spaces to provide services to people who are not associated with Applicant. Applicant, is not
providing retail sales or services to the general public.

Part 11: W: Is Project site Currently Subject to [DA Transaction

Yes. Transaction is restructuring of existing bonds issued by Agency. Please see Background
{above).



Part 111: B. Sources and Uses

sSources

2021A Bonds S 40,710,000
20218 Bonds 127,327,000
System Contribution 9,000,000
2014 Debt Service Reserve Fund 4.800.000
Total Sources $181,837.000
Refund 2014A Bonds at a discount $125,953,000
Fefund 20148 Bonds at a discount 1.374.000
Redeem 2014C Bonds (no consideration) -
Fund Payment of Resident Refunds 20,835,000
Fund MLE Requirement 18,000, 004
Debt Service Reserve Fund (20214) 4,080,000
Debt Service Reserve Fund (2021B) 6,395,000
Contingency 1,000,000
Closing Costs 4.000.000
Total Uses $181,837.000

Part II1: D. Working Capital

A portion of the 2021A Bonds will be used for Applicant to meet liquidity reserves required by
New York State regulation,

Part 111: E. Refinancing

The 2021B Bonds will issued to restructure and refinance the 2014 Bonds issued by the Agency.
See Background above.

Part I11: F. Refinancing

Holder of the 2014 Bonds have agreed to purchase the 2021A Bonds. The 2021B Bonds will be
delivered to the holders of the 2014A and B Bonds in exchange for those 2014 Bonds. See

Background above.



Part 1V: A: Estimated Payroll
Present First Year Second Year Third Year
Full-Time 54,395.492
Part-Time 585,736
Seasonal B B |
Total Annual
Pavroll 54,981,228 £5,682,754 B5.824982 | 553,970,600 |

Average wages of employees (excluding benefits) presently emploved by Applicant in Nassau

County 1s -.f'hr_



SCHEDULE 1

PartI: I: Threatened and Pending Litigation
1. Collichio, Justin vs Amsterdam at Harborside (Suffolk Supreme Court: 16788/2011)
7.5 June, Daniel vs Amsterdam at Harborside (Suffolk Supreme Court: 61751/2013)
3. Actions against Applicant seeking entrance fee refund:
a) (NY Supreme Court: 614818/2020)

as Executor (NY Supreme Court: 601521/2021)
as co Executors (NY Supreme Courl: 612483/2020)
as Executors (NY Supreme Court: 611908/2020)

e) as Executor (NY Supreme Court: 607467/2020)
4. please see below regarding bankruptcy cases
Part I: J: _Applicant’s Involvement in Bankruptey

On July 22, 2014, Applicant filed a petition for relief under chapter 11 of title 11 of the United
states Code (the “Bankruptey Code™) in the Bankruptcy Court (Case No. 14-73348 (AST)).
Hon. Alan S. Trust presided over the casc.

The filing was made after months of discussions with the majority holders of the outstanding
2007 Bonds which resulted in an agreement to restructure Applicant’s debt through an exchange
of the outstanding 2007 Bonds for 2014 Bonds. In accordance with the debt restructuring plan,
on the effective date of the plan of reorganization, the holders of the Series 2007A, B and C
Bonds surrendered their bonds for an equivalent aggregate value of 2014A, B and C Bonds.

Applicant expenienced further financial difficulties leading 1o a deferral of monthly payments
and waiver of certain covenants in April, 2020 followed by a series of forbearance agreements
with bondholders.  On June 14, 2021, Applicant again filed a petition for relief under chapter 11
of the Bankruptey Code in the Bankruptey Court (Case No. 21-71095 (AST)). Hon. Alan S.
Trust 1s presiding over the case.

The Plan of Reorganization presented to the Bankrupiey Court is based on an agreement in
principle, after months of discussions, with the majority holders of the outstanding 2014 Bonds
to restructure Applicant’s debt through an exchange of the outstanding 2014A and B Bonds for
2021B Bonds. In accordance with the debt restructuring plan, on the effective date of an
approved plan of reorganization, the holders of the Series 2014A and 2014B Bonds will
surrender therr bonds (in the current aggregate principal amount of $139.917,130) for a pro rata
amount of the new Serics 2021B Bonds in a principal amount of $127,327.200. The Series
2014C Bonds will be cancelled in whole without any payment or consideration.

Part I. Principals holding Government Positions




James Davis 1s an appointed member of the New York State Continuing Care Retirement
Community Council.
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EXHIBIT A
Upon acceptance of the Application by the Agency for processing and completion of the

Cost/Benefit Analysis, the Agency will attach a proposed PILOT Schedule hereto, together with
an estimate of the net tax benefit/cost of the proposed PILOT Schedule.
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EXHIBIT B

Fair Housing/Equal Housing Opportunity Folicy to be adopted by Agency Applicants
for Housing Projects

As part of our continuing effort o ensure compliance with federal, state, and local anti-diserimination laws, we
would like to take this opportunity to remind you of our policies regarding cqual housing opportunity. 1t is
important for all employees to review his or her own actions in light of these requirements and for evervone to
keep in mind the importance of treating all persons cqually,

It is the policy and practice of this company not to engage in or assist the efforts of others

to engage in housing discrimination, Consistent with that policy, we remind you that the antidiscrimination
laws of the United States, New York State, and local laws are quite specific m the area of housing, and in
contormance with those laws, you must not engage in any of the following conduct during the course of your
waork for this company:

1. Refuse to show, rent, sell, negotiate for the rental or sale of, or otherwise make unavailable or deny,
housing to any person because of race, color, religion, creed, sex/gender, farmilial status (having or
expecting a child under 18), national origin, ethnicity, disability, marital status, age, sexual
orientation, military status, source of income or status as survivar of domestic violence (each a
"prohibited basis™);

2. Discriminate against any person in the terms, conditions or privileges of a rental or sale or in the
provision of services or facilities in connection therewith because of a prohibited basis;

3. Make any verbal or written statement with respect to the rental or sale of housing that indicates any
preference, limitation or discrimination concerning a prohibited basis, or any statemeant indicating an
intention to make any such preference, limitation or discrimination;

4. Represent to any person because of a prohibited basis that any housing or unit is not available for
inspection, rental or sale when such apartment is in fact so available;

5. Steer persons into or away from certain areas of a building, development or neighborhood because of
a prohibited basis;

6. Refuse to provide a reasonable accommodation in rles, policies, practices or services fortenants,
buyers, or applicants with disabilities: and

Refuse to allow a reasonable modification to individual units or common areas for tenants, buvers, or
applicants with disabilities.

We arc firmly committed to the goal of fair housing. You should understand that any violation of this Fair
Housing/Equal Housing Opportunity Policy will lead to discipline, up to and including discharge.
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EXHIBIT C

Sample Fair Housing Posters

11, B, Dopartmaril of Houskep and Urban Dovelopmant oy,
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HOUSING
DISCRIMINATION IS
SOMETIMES BLATANT,
SOMETIMES

r

BUT ALWAYS UNLAWFUL.
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EXHIBIT D
Requirements for Affirmative Marketing Plans for Housing Projects

Affirmative marketing plans submitted by the Applicant shall be required omly for affordable or “work lorce”

units and shall contain the following information:

1.
2

6.

{JI

1.

Street address, village, town, zip code, and census tract number for the Project;

Number of affordable units to be marketed and whether they will be available for rentor
purchase;

The number, if any, and location of market rate units included in the Project;

Whether the housing will be “housing for older persons”, defined as at least 80%
occupancy of units with at least one person 55 or older or 100% occupancy of persons
age 62 or older;

A description of how units will be advertised for sale or rental prior to first occupancy,
meluding whether Applicant will utilize its own website, commercial wehsites, print
media outlels, social media outlets such as Facebook, a sign at the project site, mailings,
leaflets/flyers, brochures, and other forms of advertising:

A staternent that the Applicant will use fair housing logo or phrase “Equal Housing
Opportunity” on all advertising described above:

A statement that the Applicant will distribute written information regarding the
availability of affordable units at the project to a list of organizations provided to the
Applicant by the Agency, which list may be updated annually;

Whether the Applicant will conduct the marketing and initial rent-up or sales itself or
contract with a third-party;

A statement that an initial application period with a specific start and end date will be
utilized for accepting applications for consideration for the initial rental of the units and
that the period will last for at least thirty (30) days after the marketing described in this
plan is commenced. In addition, a statement that following the initial applicationperiod,
all the applications submitted during the initial application period will be considered
through the use of a lottery and not on a first-come first-served basis, unless the number
of applications received during the initial application period 15 less than the total number
of units available for rental,

A statement that the Applicant will maintain records of the activities it undertakesto
implement its marketing plan.
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